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JUDGMENT

T - Aforesaid appeals under

I
sectioo 25 (1) of the ,\nri l'errorism -\ct, 1997 (hereinafter rclcrlcd to

as A.T.j\.) at rhc insrance of appcllants arc direcrcd agdnst the

judgment dated 12.08.2011, p,rsscd bv thc leatncd _\oti Terrorism

(lourt I, Iiarachi, rvhcrcbl lppcllants hr\,e beeo coilvictccl uoder

scctioo 7(a) ofthc -\.'t.-\. rcrd vitlr sccrion 302,34 lrpC and appcllenr

Shahicl Zaffar has bcc'l scntelcecl to derth \\,irh dirccrion to bc haugctl

bt'nech till hc is cleacl ancl rcmailriog appcllar.rts namelt. \Iuhammacl

Afzal, Blhaur tiehman, I-iaquat -\li, Nluhammad Tarirl, Nlar.rthar,\L

and Afsar l(han rvere seotcnced to impdsonment for lifc. l)cath

sentcnce ewarded ro thc appcllanr Shahid Zefar rvas subject to confitnation

bl d.ris Courlt under Scciorl 374 Cr.P.(.. read with secrion 30(2) of
A.T.A. 1997. A1i the appcllants Nere dircoed to pa1, finc of Rs.2 lacs

cach end in casc oiclcfnuit in pelncnt of finc, thcl rver-e orclercd ro
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at 2345 hours SIP l{ubashir Flussaio appcared at Police station and

produced two accused persons namely Shahid Zaffar and lvlohammad

ifzal. FIe arresrcd them in prescocc of mashirs namely SIP Riaz Hussain

aod PC Nazir and ptepared such mashirnana. On 10.06.2011 Lance Naik

Mohammad Ashfag appeared at Police station and handed over G-3 Rifle

No.1289 with 10 Iive bullets and two empties through letter. He secured

the same io presence of mashirs LIC N{au1a Bux and SI Nasrullah ard

prepared such mashirnama and sent said G-3 Rifle to lncharge FSL,

Iiatachi on 11.6.2011, rvith two empties used in this crimc for examination

and rcport. I/O rccotdcd 161 CI.P.C statements of P.Ws. During

investigation l.re added Sectjon 7 A'l A 1997.

4. Honourable Supteme Court of Pakistan had taken suo moto actir,n

in this n.rarter and in Suo'trloto Case No.10/2011 NIr. Sultan Ali l(harvajr

rvas dirccted to tal(e over the charge of investigation rvhile obsewing rn

order dated 10.6.2011 as under:

"12. I'rom tlle above notcd fhcts and circumstanccs. ir is not
difficult to visualize that horv this incitlcnr lud raken placc
ancl thc maoncr in rvhich both the high-ups i.c. of $c Policc
and rhc llangen, had dealt with the samc. lt is classical case o[
highhandedness of the larv enforcing agencies xfld itstead o[
teeling sense of responsibilitr, and showing uprightress and
I-roocsfr,, thel are, even roda1, conccalirg thc facts rvhilc
appearing belorc this (lourt. Ihcrcfcrrc, unclcr thcsc
cil'cumstanccs, we apptehend tbat the invcstigation oI the casc
rvoulcl not bc conducted propedy and impartially in prcsencc
of borh these seniot ofhcers i.c. i\{r. Far.vaz ihmcd Leghari,
PPO Siodl.r nod l\fu. I\ltrhammacl Ejaz Chaucllrty, l)G l{angets
(Sindh). as such through ,\ttoroc\, (lenctal of Paliistan, rvr:

dircct drat they should be posted out rvithin a pcriocl of thrcc
drys end in the meilntime so[re tlternxtc arrangements should
be matlc. Flou,ever, if after three dat s, thc nodfications in this
rcll,lr(l xre not issLlccl, it is dirccted ro rvithhokl thc saladcs of
lubor-c trvo oft-iccrs as thcy rvoulcl not bc cntitled fbr thc sarre
till thc norificador of drcir posting out is not issucd. 'l his part
of our ordcr shall bc cnlorce ci/implcmcrred by the Secretary
lntcrior bl procccdtrg accorclirrl5 to rclevrnt tulcs. Ilcanrvhilc,
NIr'. Sultto Iihlu,rLj.r, Dl() I..rLraclrr, s,lro is strtcd\'r rcputrblc
ofticet, is direcrcd to fxlic ()\,cr thc chrirrc r,f rhe inr.estigatioo
againsr xll the culptits ancl corrqrletc tite same rvithin a pcriocl
of seven days, b1, appJyirg all approprile provisiors of larv as

thc matter seeDs to nttrnct y'rlta /iz'u e Scction 7 of the A'fA,
1997, and shall send up chullnn bcforc rhe Court of
compctc,l jutisdictlxr. FIc shnll also sul;rrit plogress teport
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of his investigatioo ro the Registrar of this Court flor out
pcrusal in Chambers.

5. Thereafter investigation was traosferred to DIG Sultan Ali l(hawaja.

Sultan AIi I(harvaja, DIG constiruted an investigation team with approval

of CCPO, I(arachi headed by lim, sraremeflts of thc pWs were recorded

under Secrion 161 Cr.P.C, case propcrties were sent to Ballistic ancl

Chemical Examiners for analysis alcl teport, cell phones data used by the

accused aod deceased rvere collecred. FIe had also received report from the

lrire Arm Exrminer, I(arachi dated 17.6.2011, in crimc No. Z2j /2011
under sections 302,34 I)PC, in which it was shown rhat pisrol in question

was not fire arm. He had also received repot of the Chemical examiner

sho\ving that clothes of rhc deceascd rvere stained rvith human bloocl.

Repott of the llallistic llxpert regarding orher officia] u,eepons Lecoverecl

from accused was also rcceived. On the completion of the investigation,

challan was submitted against appellants in the court of learned

.\drninistrarivc .fudgc ATC, I(arachi under secrion 302, 3.1 pp(_ rcad with 7

,,\1'4, 1997. (lesc was translerrcd to thc Court of leamcd Anti--lerrorism

Court No.l, I{arachi for disposal accor<iing to law.

6. A fomrLl chrrgc agrinst appellants/accused Shahid Zaffar,

N,Iohammad Afzal l(han, Baha-ur-l{ehman, Liaquat .\li, llohtmmad .1rrriq,

N{anthar r\li and Afsar I(han rvas framed at Ex.10. To thc chatge accused

pleaded not guilq' and claimed trial.

7. i\t rrial, pr()sccuri)n examined, P\t'I Sved Sahk Shah, p.W_2 SIp

lLiaz Hussain, PW-3 Nluhtmmad Javed, pW 4 SIp Zulflqar Ali, p!(_5

Inspector Nascer \Iohammad, PW-6 l\Ist. Gul Naz, pW-7 N{ohrmmad

Sl.rtl.rccn Javecl, P\\/-8 SIP -\bclLrl Haleem I(olacli, p\X/,9 Dr. Avaz ,-\[
IIemon, PW,10 r\bdul l{ashccd, P$(,-11 SIp ll.-asmllah lihan, p\t 12

Nlohammad Shahid, P\X, 13 N{ohammad Ramzan, pW-14 SIP Faqeer Daci,

PW-15 Zahid Essa l(hokhar, P\\./-16 Shakeel -\hmed Shaikh, pW_.l7

Iospcctor N{oharrmad trlubeen, P\X, 18 .\bdul Srlarr Soomro, pW_19 DSP

lltaf I Iussain, 1)\V-20 DIC- Sultan Ali Iiharvaja.

8. Statemcnrs of appellanrs Shthid Zafar, \,Iuhlurned i\fzal, Ilahaur

I{chman, l-iacluat ,\li, Nlohamnacl 1ruic1, i\Ianthar .\li tod -\fsar Ii.rao rvere

recorcled under sccion 3,12 ()-.P.C at llx. 32 ro 3g, in rvhich appellants

hrtvc denicd prosecution alicgations aud pleatled innocclce. Appellant

trt
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Shahid Zafar has stated thar he has not commirted murder of deceased

Sarfraz Shal.r. I-lowever, he has adr:ritted that on 8.6.2011, he along with

other llangers had gonc to Shrhced Beoazir Park for perlorming duty. He

has also rcpliecl thar he had no knorvledge about rhe video clip of the

ir.rcident showo on A\VI\Z T\r on 8.6.2011. He has rlso denied that he had

committed the act of terrorism. He further stated that pWs have deposed

against l.rim at the insraoce of complainaot aod I.O. I Ie wanted to examinc

in delencc Col. Salman, Paldstao llangers, Nfohamn.rad Saleem, Dr.iver

CFILIEPA Ambulance and Chiel Engineer SANA 11,. Appellant Shahid
'/,afar did not examine himself on oarh in disproof of prosecurion

allegations. In a cluestion what else he has to say, he replied thrt he rvas

inrxicent and has becn ialsely irrplicated in this casc. Appellaot Nlohammad

Afza] I{.ran has also pleaded innocence and denicd tlte prcsecutiorl

allcgations rnd stated that PWs have deposed against him rt the instance of
I.O. Appellant \.{ohammad Afzal I$an did not examioe himself on oeth in

disproof of prosecution allegations. He did not examine any witness in

clelcnce. .\ppe)lant Bahaur llehman has also pleadcd inooccnce and denied

the prosccurjoo ailcgations and statcd rhat hc had not committed act of
tcrrolism and PWs have deposed againsr l.rim at tire iostance of I.O. rr-o

eyidcnce has bccn led by hin] in defence and he declined to glve statement

on oath in disproof of prosccution allcgations. Appellant Lia<prat r\Ii has

also denicrl pnrsecution allegatior-rs and srated thar he hacl not committed

act o[ tcrrorism and PWs have deposed against him at the instance of LO.

No evidencc in defence is produced by him and l.re did not exlmine himsclf

oo orth. Appcllant ![ohammad Taricl has also denicd prosccution

rLllcgations and statcd rhat hc had appeared before I.O. himselt. FIe has

shown ignorance about vidco clip of incident. Appellanr l{ohammad Tari<1

has dcnicd the commission of lcr of terror-isrn and sratcd that pWs have

drposed lgainst him at the insrancc oI complainant and policc. He wanted

to cxrmine in clefence one ,\lam Zaib. Appcllaot did nor examine himself

oD oath. -i\ppellint trllnthar has denied thc prosccution allegrtions al]d

statcd rhrt hc had called accuscd Af.sirr l{Lrrn on his mobile. Othcr

prosecution allegations have becn der.ried by him. Fle wxoted to cxaminc in

delence one r\lan-r Zaib. howcver no cvidencc on oatb was giveo by him.

1yrpellant r\fsar I(han has also clcnied all the incriminariog pieces of
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evidence brought on rcco1d against him aod stated that oo act of tertorism

has been committed by him and P\X/s have deposed against him at the

instance of complainant and P\\rs. Fle wanred ro examine in defence DIG
Sultao AIi ldrurvaja, DSP .\ltaf I lussaio and SIP Nasrullah. He declned to

give statement on orth in disproof of prosecution allegations. Ina guesrion

what elsc he has to say, he rcplied thlt he is ionocent aod has beeo firlsely

imp)icated in this case b),dre complainanr because hc had apprehended

deceased and haaded over to the l{angers personnel. DW-1 Alam Zaib

I{han has deposed that on 8.6.2011 he had visited Shaheed Benazir park

rvith his frieod Miss Hira and he w^s sitting rvith her in park where one

person appeared and pointed our pistol at them and nsked to rnise hands up

irnd hand over to him all the belongrngs. He asked Nliss Hira to handover

him het mobiie phone, thercaftet culpriL asked :\lan.r Zaib l(han Lo

handover him his mobile, to rvhich hc resisted ancl causccl hirn butr blorvs

and he fell down. In tl.re meanrvl.ile, appellant At.sar Iihan came there and

hc handed over said pcrson to appcllant r\fsar l(han and appellant Afsar

l.,hro hantlecl ovcr his custoclt, to larv elkrrcing rgcncy. Lr cross

examination he denied the suggesrion tlt^t he was oot preseor in Shaheed

Benazir park on the dav of incident dong with N{iss Flira. He has denieci

thc suguestioo that hc was dcposing flrlsclv in order to savc the accused

liom thc conviction.DW-2 Col. Sllmao.\hmcd I{har has deposcd that on

the day of incidcnt irccused were performing their dutics in the area of Boat

Basin. Belore incident hc came to knorv that accuscd persons rvere cdlecl

bl one cii,ilian and the1, rvere hancled over one persoo involved in

commissioo of robbcry. Above named DW camc ro knorv that accused

persons asked culprit ro sit dorvn and raisc his hlnds up but he tried to

snatch v'capon from accused persons and hc dicd due ro rccidental fire. FIc

has further statcd thlt Rnngers pcrforr.r.r dury to maintain ]aw and ordcr at

Iiarachi. No other deflncc witncss has been exrmined by appellaots and

-r\dvocatcs lor thc appellanLs/accuscd cl,rscd side.

9. We havc carefully heard the learn ed coulsel

scanncd the entire cvidence.

T
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10. In order to prove an unnarural death of deceascd Satfaraz Shah,

prosecution has cxaminecl Dr. :\r'az Ali (lr.W-9), rvho has stated that on

08.06.2011 hc rvas perlorming his evcning dury in the JPMC. i\t 6.00 p.m

injured Sarftaz rvas brought in tl.re hospital in the critical condition by

Chippa drivcr namely Saleem. Fle examined him and found follorving

injuries oo his persot:

1. Fire Ann puncture would 1 c.m in diameter over posterior aspect
of upper onc third ol left forearm. Nlargrns are invcrted 

^od 
no

blnckening prcscnt. Would of enry.

2. Fire Arm injury measuring size 8cmx5 cm ovcr medial aspect of
mid of left foreatm. Nfargins are rougl.r and averted. Would of
cxit.

3. Irirc .\rn purrctured rvould 1 c.m rl cliametct ovet posterior
aspcct of lorvcr one fiird of lelt forearm. Nlar-grns are invcrted
and no blackeoing present. \X/ould of eotry.

4. Fire arm injun mersuring 5 c.m x 4 c.m ovcr medial aspcct of
Io',vet onc third of left forearm. Nlargins ate rough and avcrted.
\Yc.ruld of cxit.

5. Firearm injury mcasuring 20 c.m x 15 c.m over medio postetior
aspect of right thigh, bursting ir manner.

6, Fitearm injury 4 c.m x 3 c.m over antedor aspect of left thigh,
margins arc inverted and no blacking present. Would of entry.

7. Fircum iniurr' 12 c.m x 10 c.m, posrerior aspecr of lcft thigh,
mrrgios are rough and avcrtecl. V,'ould of Exit.

Nledical Ofhcer after examination of injurcd issued such certificate tnd

produced it at Ex.19/A. 'Ihereafter injured expired and cettihcare of cause

of his death rvas issued by Dr. Ghulam Mustafa of JNIPC wirile opining

that deceascd had died due to carclio pulmonarv faiiure as a result of
fircarm injurics. He produced such certifrcate at Flx.19/Il. He had handed

over clothes o[ deceased to SlP Muhar.nmad Javed at p.S. Boat Basin.

Evidence of the N{edical Officet goes unc}rallenged and uorebutred in

cross-exarnination. Orrly one clucstion had been pur up to thc doctor and

he replied thar hc did rror t-tnd nlatks of fists ot kicks blorvs on the bodv of
deceased.

l-

11. The number o[ ir.rjuries, oature afld 'uvcrpoo usecl hrrre not been

disputed in ctoss-examinaricxr. Et'ficiency and Integrin- of tl.rc N{edical

Officer have nor beeo qucstioned. 'Iherelorc, rve have no hesitntion to hold
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thar dcccasecl Sarfraz Shah c]iecl his unnetural dcarh us dcsctibcd by Xledicrl

a

12. Complainant Syed Salik Shah has stated that on 0g.06.2011 at 5.30

p.m. he was preseor ar his ofhce siruated at Techoo City of Altaf Hussair

Halli Road. He received call o[ his mother, she informed him that mohalla

rvooren have told ller that thcre was some quarrel with Sarfraz Shah

(dcceased) at Sl.raheed Reoazir Park. Lle was lurther infomed rhat police

and Rrngers personnel wcre available at rhe place oI incident, Complainaot

after receipt of such information, contrcred Boat Basio police, but they had

ro knowledgc about the incident. SIP Zulfiqar subsequently told to the

complainant that consequent upon thc quarrel of his brothcr he had

leceived injuries and hc had been shifted to the Jirnah Hospiral.

Complaioant went thcre and found thtt the dead body of his brother was

\,ir.rg io cmergency and some lhngers personnel werc standing rhere. One

r\lzal belonging to Rangers rvas also standrng there. I Ie enquired hin about

murdcr of his brother, to rvhich he replied that his brother has been

mutdered ir the eqcountcr with the Rangers. Compltioant gor dead body

of his brother after postmortem examination and camc to the C.NI. housc

alongwith friends and relatives by taking the dead body lor protesr agausr

such lct of llangers OtIcials. Protest colrjrucd lor 6/7 hours ancl on rhe

rssulance of thc policc oihcials he wenr ro the police sttion and lodged

the repolt. He saw video clip of iris brother on T.V. Channel but could not

see it and lost his senses. Ile was cross-examinetl bt, Iearoecl Advocate of
accusccl Shali<i and r\[zd ancl admitted tl]ar flnmes of the culpdts of the

incident were not disclosed by mol.ralla women to his mother. He has

statcd that he had found accused Shahid Zafar ud Nfohammad Afzal in

Itangen unilorm in the hospital. Complainant has deoicd the suggesuons

tltat his broLher was involved in cL.rmnitting robbery. In rhe cross_

eramioation to learocd r\dvocate for renainiog accuseci, complainant has

rcplied that his furthcr srxtcmeor u,as r-ecorded atier Juma prlyer and he

hacl not mentionecl thc names of the et,clitncsscs irr thc F.l.l{. or in furthet

strltement. FIc has dcnied the suggcsdons thar pistol rvas rccoyered from

thc possession of his brorl.rcr. He has also deniecl the suggestions that he

rvrrs dcposing falscll, irgailst thc accuscd.

)

C)fficer.
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13. P\7-2 S.LP. Riaz Hussail Arvan has stated that on 0g.06.2011 he was

pcrtblning his dutf ar P.S. Boat Basin. Complainanr appearecl at police

station on rhe same clal at 1215 hours for lodgrng his report againsr

Rangers personnel. FIe recorded his statement and handed over copy of the

F.I.R, to SIO for invesrigation purpose. On 09.06.2011 ar 2345 hours SIp

tr{ubashir Flussain of lUngers brought accused Shahid Zatflr md
\Iuhammad Afzal. Tl.rey were arrested by SIp Laclcer Dnd, such

mashirnama rvas prcpared. He acted as mashir. Co-mashir rvas p.C Nazir

Iihattak. FIc has stared rhat his starement under Sectior 161 Cr.p.C. rvas

recordecl on 16.06.2011. FIis sr^renlerlr rvas also recorded by DIG Sultan

-{li li.rarvaja l.C). of the case. Io the cross-examinatioo, he has replied that

names of accuscd Baha-u ltahman ancl Liaquat AIi are not mentioned in

tl,c lr.Ltl. It has also beefl admitcd thar names of the eycwitnesses are not

mentioned in the F.I.R.

1,1. l']W 3 S.LP. \Iuhal.rmacl Jar.cd llajpur has stated that on 0g.06.2011

he rvas postcd ar P.S. Roat Basin. On rhe same dal ar jg35 hours he

rcceived relephonic message from S.I. Wilayat that he l.ras been informed

by Dr. A1,rz thxt one person namely Sarfraz Shah son of uoknown agcd

about 25 r'crrs has expired io rhe l.rospital and he rvas recluircd to rcach at

JP\{C ibr completion of legal formalities. He reachcd in the l.rospital and

lound deacl body of deceased Sarfraz Shah. At that time Shahid Zafar and

Nluhammad Afzal belonging to llangers were standing near the dead body.

l-le preparcd mashirnama of inspection of dcacl body and inguest reporr

and gavc letter ro the doctor about his opinion regarding cause of cleath of
deceascd. ln the cross-examination he has deniecl rl.re suggestioo that he

rvas deposiog falselv.

11. PW-4 SIP Zulficluar Ali Gujar has srared thar on 0g.06.2011 he was

prcscnt 
^t 

P.S. Boat Rasio. :\t (r.35 p.rn. SIp Javcd reccivcd tnlormarioo in
lis plesence thxt one pelson namely Sartraz Shah has been brought to the

hospital in the injuted condition rvhile he rvas committing dacoity. He

informed S.H.O. P.S. Roat Basir.r about tire ir.rcideot. Io tl.re mcanwhile SIp

Javed proccecled to hospital ancl he lodgcd lr.I.lt. of Crimc No.225/2011,

undcr Sectiolrs 393, 353, 32,+ P.P.C. ancl F.LR. No.226/2011, urcler Secuoo

13(d) Arms Ordinance of thc complainant _tr fsar I{han agair.rst Sarftaz

I
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Shah. He produced F.LRs at Ex.14/A & 14lB. S.H.O. handed over one

pistol of 30 bore, 3 Jive bullets and oflc empry, ooe purse, cash of Rs.750/_

and a raobile to him. S.H.O. told hirn rl.rat articies have been handed ovcr

to him by Rangers Persoonel, the same were recovcrecl from the possession

of deceased. He sealed pistol and bullets and handed over the case properql

to SIO P.S. Boat Basin for invcstigation purpose. On 09.06.2011 at 6.00

p.m. first l,O. SIP Faqeer Dad visired the place of vardhar in his presence

and in presencc of mashir P.C Nazit ancl prepared such mashirnama. He

has stated that his stateorert was rccorded by DIGp Sultan Ali I(hau,aja,

Investigation Officer in this case. In rhc cross-examioarion he has admitted

that his starement under Section 161 Cr.p.C. was recorded after eight days

of the incident. He has cienied rhe suggcstions thnt hc was dcposing falsely

against the accused at the instancc of l.ris supetiors.

15. PV-5 Inspector Naseer N{r.rhamn.rad Tanoli has statecl thar on

08.06.201 t he \\,.as posted as S.FI.O. 1).S. Boar Basin. .\t 1840 hours hc rvas

pcrk.rrmiog his pnrrollng du6, he reccived information at mobile phone

ftom SIP Zulficluar of P.S. Bort Basin that onc person has bcen seriously

injuted in the firing of Ilangers personoel at Shahced Bcnnzir Bhutto parh

and he has beea taket ro JPN{C, On such irformation, S.FI.O. proceeded

to place of vardhat, rvherc number o[ persons were avnilable, l.rc eocluirerl

from them about incident, they inlormcd the S,FI.O. thar one person has

rcceivcd the injuries caused by li.angers personnel and hc has been shiftecl

to JPN.{C. S.FI.O. went ro JPNIC, rvhere he mer SIp Javed, who clisclosed

him thar injured has expired. In the mearrrvhile, he receivecl call from

l)cputy Superintcndent llangers name\i -\li, who asked S.H.C). ro reacl.r at

Ilangers Fleadquartcr 32 \X/iog I(alapul. FIe wenr therc and mer

Supcdntendeot Rangers, he cailed SIp Baha-u-Rahmau, who handed over

to }im one pistol with magazine, three Live bullcts, onc empry, one purser

cash l{s.750/ ancl o11c mobilc phonc rhrough lcrter and statcd that articles

were lecovered ftom deccased Sarft.az S].rair. Sll, l3aha u_llahmro further

infonned S.H.O. that during encounter deceased had fired upon them from
tl.re pistol. Superintendent Ilangers namelv A[i asked S.H.O. to take AEsrr

I(han rt P.S. ttrt lodging his reporr. FIe came ro p.S. alongrvirh .\fsat I{l.ran

and handed over articles to SIP Zulliquar fbr Iegal proceedings. Ot
09.06.2011 hc received telepl.rone from dutv of&cer SIP lliaz that one

I
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media person had appeared at P.S. for regtstration of the F.I.R. against

Rangers Personnel. He dirccted SIP lLiaz to register F.LR. of the

complainant and F.I.R. No.227 /2011 under Section 302,3,1 p.p.C. was

registered. In the cross examination, S.H.O. has replied that prior to this

iocident deceased Sarfraz Shah was apprehended by him while commirdng

robbery, but he was released at the request of lis pare[ts. He has denied

the suggestions that he has deposed falseiy against the accused at the

instance of DIG Sultan Ali I(harvaja.

16. PW-6 N{st. Gul Naz Tanoli hxs stared that she resides rvith her

husband and children in her house situated in street No.21, Hijrat Colony,

I(arachi. She saw video clip at Srmaa T.V. at 1.30 a.m. and saw six Rangers

persoonel and one private person had apprehended dcceased, plivate

person was causing fists and kicks blows ro him and handed over him to
Rangers Personnel at Shalleed Benazir Bhutto park. She has further statecl

that boy was begging for his life and was praying for mercy before the

Raogers Personnel and one llanger was asking the other Rangers

personnel/accused to open fire upon him. Deceased received fire at his

hand and leg and fell dorvo. He rvrs bleeding. Deceased rvas requesting ro

the accuscd to shifr him to the hospital but no one came forward. After

seeing the video ciip, she stated that she was confused and felt insecure and

could oot movc freeli, aod her children were also under fear ancl felt

insecure. Shc rvas ctoss-exrmined. She denied thc suggcstions rhat she has

dcposed falsely against the accused at the insrance of complainant.

11. llW,7 Nluhamraad Shaheer Javed has st:rtcd that on 09.06.2011 at

7.30 a.m. he came to the housc from the dury aod fouud mohalla peoplc

under fear and his fami\, was also fccling insecurc as Ilangers pcrsonnel

hacl committed murder of a boy. Hc switched on '1.V. rnd sarv video clip

that one person io civil dress apprchended one person nnd handed over to

llangers personnel after causing l.rim l<icks blows. l hc boy rvas twing to sir

in tl.re police mobile and ltangers personnel dragged him dorvn and pointed

their weapons at him, io the mcamvhilc, he rvas fired upon by the l{angcrs

personnel aod deceased rvas beggrng tbr his life bcfore the llarrgers

officials, but no ooe heard him. On seeing tiris footlgc on T.\r. he has

stated that hc felt insccure. Ot 12.06.2011 his statemcnt under Section 161

>
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(lr.P.C. rvas recorded. He has strted that accused pcrsons present in tlre

Court rvere same, who were seen by irim on T.V. video clip. He rvas cross-

examioed at length. He has denied the suggestioos thrt he has deposed

falsely at the instarrce of thc complainant and police.

18. l']\V-8 SIP -{bdul Ha}ecm I{olachi has deposed that on 12.06.2011 he

rvas posted as SIP in the investigatioo branch at P.S, Boat Basin. On the

s:rme day he rcccived directions from the high officials to assist the

invcstigation of Crirne No.221/2011, under Secrion 302/34 P.P.C.

Appellaot,/accuscd Afsar Shah was auested in presence of mashirs. On

same day Inspector Nadeem Anwrr of Rangers appeared at police starion

and haoded over two mobile sets of accused N{anthat Aii aod Afsar ICran.

Same were secured and such mashirnama was prepared in presence of

t.rasl.irs. On 13.06.2011, two persons namely Saleem and N4uhammad

Sulrao of Chippa Welfare ,\ssociation appeated at P.S. and produced Lrvo

reglsters to I.O. In his ctoss-examination, he has deniecl the suggestruos

that he rvas deposing falsely against accused Afsar I{hao.

19. PW-10,\bdul Ilasheed Siddiqui has stirtcd that on 08.06.2011 he rvas

posted as D.D.O, Parks io City Govcrnmcnt, I(arachi. (Jn the same date, at

2.30 p.m. he had received a telepl.rone call from his office to mal<e

necessary arlangements at Shaheed Benazir Bhutto Park, Boar Basi[, as ralk

show rvould be recorded by Arvaz 'I.\t. He reachcd in dre park at 4.15 or

4.30 p.m. and called Nluhrmmad Shahid Ovcrscer and P.W Nluhamraad

Ramzan lncharge of the parh and directed them to keep the park neat and

clean. In the mcanvhile, he saw ooe person in civil dress havir.rg cap, l.rad

caugl.rt hold one person from his collar. He rvenr behind said person aod

fr>und ooe mobilc of Rangers entered in the pad< speedily. Said person gave

fists and kicks blorvs to thc boy' ancl handed ovet his custody to the

llangets personnel. Fle heard voices ol "\L{RO N,lAliO" and hcard reports

of two fites, which hit said boy and he fell dorvn and rvas bleeding. C)n

witnessing this incideot he stnted that hc lost his senses clue to rvaive of fear

nnd lelt the placc of incident. P.Ws. Xluhamnrad llamza, \luhaml.nd

Shahid and mcdia persons of Arvaz '[.\r. werc there. P.W. Abdul Rashccd

was called by DSP Altaf on the light of 12.06.2011 to thc P.S. Boat Basin,

rvhere his statemeot rvas recorcled utder Scction 161 Cr.P.C. on

)
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beforc the

15.06.2011

He had also received notice on 1.1.06.2011 lor appearance

Cir.il Judge & Judicial N{agrstrate, I(arachi South and on

his sratement under Section 164 Cr.p.C. was recorded in
presence of the accused petsons and produced it in cvidence t Ex.20/B.

He has stated that accused persons p{escnt io Court are same who wcre

seen by him in the park. He has admitted io the cross-examinarion thar at

tl.re time of incident deceased was trying to lide his face from camera. FIe

has denied the suggestions that he rvas deposing falsely against the accused

persons. He has also denied the suggesrion that he has not witnessed the

incident.

20. PW'-1 1 Nasrullah lihnn Ilajpur has stated that on 0g.06.2011 he rvas

posted in tl.re investigation branch at p.S. Boat Basin. He hld receivcd nvo

F.LRs. bearing Crimc No.22512011 undet Sections 393/324/353 p.t,.C.

and Crir-rrc No.226/201 1 under Sectjon l3(d) .1rms Ordinaoce for
investigation. He had also receivcd mrshirnama of recovcry of the 30 bore

pistol, three live bullets and one empt1. He had also inspected dead body of
dcceased in presencc of mashirs, receivcd postmortcm report and clothes

of the deceased. He had also inspected place of vardhat on rhe poinration

of complainant Ai\ar l(han of Crime r.r.-o.225/2011 and prepared sucl.r

rnashirnama io presence of the mashirs. He hacl founci bloodstained eatth

at place o[ vardhat but could not col]ect the same from the place of
vardhat. On the follos,rng drv of incident, he sent clothes o[ the deceased,

pistol aod bullets to the chemical examiner and FSl, lor analysis and report.

FIe recordecl statements of P.Ws. SIp Raja Javed, SIP ZulEqar AIi, Abdul
Rashecd DDO Parks, N,Iuhammad Shahid, Ivluhammad Zaffar and Abdul
Latif under section 161 Cr.P.C. On 10.06.201 1 r .\aiq Muhammad Ashfaquc

of llangers appeared at P.S. aod handed over G 3 Riflc, trvo cmpties and 10

live bullets to SIP Nasrullah. He pr:eparcd such mtshiroama ir presence oi
mashirs, rnd his statement rvas recorded by Slp l..aqeer Dad. Then

investigation was transttrred to DIG Sultan Ali Khuwaja. On 11.06.2011,

he has statcd rhar, on his pointation DSp Altaf Flussain visitecl place o[
vardhat in presercc of mashirs and hc produced C 3 r.ifle ancl ten livc
bullets ancl tluee empties ro the invesdgation officer. In the cross

examination, l.re has dcnied rhe su&iesrions that he was deposiag falsely

against thc appellants ro show his efficicncy.

t
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21. PW-12 N,Iuhamfrad Shahid eureshi has stated that on 0g.06.2011 at
roon timc lr.W. Abdul Rasheed relephooed him and informed that T.V.
talk show of Nfinister Shazia NIari would be held at Siraheed Beoazir Bhutto
Park and directions rvere issued to him to keep the park neat and clean. FIc
reached at Shaheed Benazir Bhutto parl< at 5.00 p.m. aocl saw a boy, he rvas

clught hold by a persoo, he rvas takiog him ro the tbod sicle. At that [me,
P.W. Abdul Rasheed gor lim down from the vehicle ar thc disrance of 100

leet arvlv fiom the place of vardhat. He heard two firc reports, he

akrnglvith garclencr rushed ro rhe plrlce of incident ancl found a boy
rvcaring pant shit lying injurecl on the gtound and Rangers personnel werc
available there and they had occupied their position. While secing the
incident P.W. Nluhammad Shahid felt fear and wert home lrom tirc place

of inciclcnt and rvatched 'l'.\,. and sarv video clip of thc incident rvith family
membe rs. Ot 72.06.2011, lis statement rvas recorded. He has stated that
accused present in Court rvere same. FIe was cross_examilecl at the length.

Hc l.rls delied the suggestions that he rvas deposiog falsclv ar rhe insrance

of policc and P.W. Abdul Rasheed. He has also dcnied rhe suggestions tl.rat

hc has not witoessed the incidenr.

22. PW-13 trIuhammnd llanlzan h:rs srated that on 0g,06.2011 he rvas

posted as Head Gardener in the parks Departmcor Ciry Government,
I(arzchi. On the same day, ar 4.30 p.m, he received telephonic call from
P,V/. Abdul Rasheed DDO, who clirected lim to makc necessaq,

arranfletrtenrs in rhe park, where T.\r. progtam rvould bc hcld. lj.W.
N'Iuhammad Shahid came in the park ar 5.00 p.rn. rnd issued him some

directioos. FIe sarv one person rvho htd caught hold a pcrson from his
collar. In the meanwhile, llangers personncl van entered ioto thc parl< and a
person who had caprured a bo1, rveadng sha\var kameez and cap handed
over custody of the boy to the Rangers personoel. He heard two lire
reports and rushed to the place of occurrence and fcruad a boy lying on tl.re

ground hc was bleeding and Itangcrs personnel had sutrounded him..l_le
was uoder fcar after witnessing the incident and proceeded to offer prayer
io the mosque. On rhe next morning, hc rvatched.I..\r. rvitl.r his family
r.r.rcmbers and saw a video clip regarding inciclent rv}ich he l.rad seen io tl.re

Shaheed Benazi Bhutto park. He has stared that his statement was

)
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present in Court arc same so also case property. FIe rvas also cross-
examined at length. fle has dcnied rhe suggestion thar present appellants /
Ilangcrs personnel had not committcd ctime and he was deposing falsely at
thc iosr^nce of his Superiors.

21. PW-15 Zahid h,ssa I(hokl.rar has stated rhar at the time of incident
i'rc was Burclu Clief of r\rvaz .1.V. 

On the da1, of incident, he alongwith
crrrert mirfl P.Ws. .{bdul Salam, Abdul Flafeez and others reached at
Shahecd Benazir Bhutto park for coverage of talk shorv ar .+.00 p.m. They
\yerc busy in searching location, it was 5.15 p.m. rhey say one person in a

civiJ dress, he hld capturecl one boy wearing pant shirt and was beating him
and he had also sccn somctl.ing like pistol in the haocl of the said person.
FIe asked P.W. Abdul Salam to record scene in his video camera. In the
n-rea[rvhilc, Rangers rnob e cntered in tl.re park. ,l.he 

same person after
causiug kicks ro rhe bov hrncled over lis custodl.to thc llange$ personnel
in rhe meanwhile l.re heard reports o[ nvo tires and l.reard words ,,N4,\RO

\1AllO". Deceased lell dorvo. He has stated that tl.rey recorded incident
and came b?ck ro the offlce and handed over cassette ro the io chargc news
room. ()n 15.06.2011, his statcment rvas recorclcd under Section 161

CI.P.C. He l.ras stated that accused who held the bov and remartung
accused petson in Court rvere stme. ln the ctoss examinatioo, he has
denied tl.re suggestion for deposiog falselv. IIe has also dcnied thc
suggestions rhar he was nor Bureau Chief in Awaz ,f.\r. at the time of
iocident.

25. PW-16 Shakeel Ahmed Shaikh has stated rhat on 16.06.2011 he was

Pteseot io his office. He was busv in his Auditing rvork in p,I.V He received
a call ftom G.N{. P-IV. He went to lis ofEce, rvl.rere DIG Sultan Ali
I{hawaja, SSP Niaz Ahmetl l{roso and DSp Altaf Ilussain were present.
FIe verified the DVR cassette. lle ilesealed it. Cassctte was played and
fcrotage of the incident was seen. It was the tilm of nvo minutes 2 seconds.
Vidco cassette was found to be gcr-ruine. Theteafter, cassette was sealed ancl
he produccd cassette (D'R) in evidence. In trre cross cxamination he has
stated that hc is Elecuonic Associate Engiocer but replied that thcre was
no notification for his appointrrrent as expcrt io edidng. He lras denied the

+
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suggestions that D\rR was artificial and managed rnd he was deposiog
falsely at the instance o[ the police.

26. Inspector \{uhammad N{ubin (?.W._17) has stated that on
11.06.2011 he rvas posred as SIO at Boat Basin p.S. ar the same day at 1700

hours. He teached in office of DIG Sultan Ali I(hawaja and attended the
meeting held in connection with investigation of Crime No.225, 226 & 221

of2011. Place of vardhat was visited by DSp Altaf .Flussain in his presence

and he secured bloodstained three bdcks and one piece of brick. Such

mashirnama was prepared. 'fhe br.icks rvcre scaled. His statement was

recorded under Secrion 161 Cr.p.C. DIG Sultan Ali l(harvaja, SSp Niaz
Ahmed Khoso took him and DSp Altaf to the office of Arvaz T.V.
channel. DIG Suhan AIi Idrawaja encluired from Arvaz T.V. Incharge
about rhe cassetre (DVR) and he produced the same bcfore investigauon

officer and it rvas sealed in his prcsence and such mashirnama was

prepaled. Thereafter, DIG Sultan AIi I(hawaja went ro the Raoge$ Office,
32 V(ing Abdullah Shah Ghazi li.angers. DSR Rangers produced accused

Baha-u-Rahman son of Israeel, Manthar, Nluhammad Tariq and Liaquat.

lle had also produced SMG lUfle alongrvith 30 rounds with magazrte

assigned to Baha-u-Rahman, one G 3 fufle along with 60 rounds, three

magazine assigned to accused Manthar, one N{G, 250 Rouods belongrng to
accused Lia<1uat, G 3 Rifle,60 rounds, three magazines issued to accused

N{uhammad l'ariq, one G 3 Rifle, three magazifle, 60 rounds of accused

Sepoy N4uhamrnad _\fzal. Attested copy of the duty roster of accused

persons dated 08.06.2011 rvas also produced before the DIG so also

Toyota r\4obile van used by accused persons or1 r].re date of incident.
N{ashirnama of arresr and recoverl was plepared in presence of the mashirs
and starcmenrs undcr Scction 161 Cr.p.C. \yerc also recorded. On
12.06.2011 DSP Altaf Hussain received ioformation about the presence of
accused Afsar I(han in Street No.9, Shireen Jinnah Cotony, I(atachi. FIe

was alrested. P.W. Inspector Muhammad NIubin acted as mashir, co_mashir
rvas SIP Abdul Flaleem liolachi. On 13.06.2011 DSp,\ltaf Hussah rvas

present at P.S. alonguath othe! police officiais, hawaldar Abdul Rahman of
a-.,-.----< xangers rppelrcd rnd produced one toy pistol. It was secured by DSp

Altaf Hussain. N{ashirnama o[ its recoven, rvas prepared. He acted as

mashir. He has statcd that tccusecl prescnt in Court were saure. In the

\'
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cross,examioation, he has denied the sqgestion that he has given false
o,idence at dre instance of DIG Sultan _{li Iirawaja. Fle has also <ienied the
suggestion that no offence has been committed bv present accused.

21. PW I 8 .\Ldul Sahrn Soomrrr

t

, calncrll lltafl, urlp()r.tilnt rvitness of the
casc hrs stated that on 08.06.2011 he rcachcd in Shal.reed Benazir Bhuttcr
Park at .1.15 p.m. alongwith team of Arvaz -f.v, consisriog of Zahid Eisa
I{hokhar, Sikandar and Itshad Solangi for recording talk show. He has

stated that rhe\.were bust, in searching proper location when p.W. Zahid
Eisl I(hokhtr asked him to record scerc as onc person in civil dress

rvealing cap was beatiog ooe boy wearing pant shirt. He staned recording
of incident ald found that said person after causiog kicks blorvs to rhe boy
handed over l.ris custody to the Rangers personnel. Thev encitcled boy, one
of them poinred his weapon on his neck. The boy was praying for rner.cy.

At that time, &engers personnel pushed him and other Ranger personoel
fired two shos upon him, which hit him and he feli down and rvas

bleeding. After recording incident mcdia persons came back to the of6ce
and infotmed about the incident to Dircctor Akaf of news and showed him
the film of rhe incidenr. On the following day morniog he came in the
office as usual and came ro know that deceased was brother of the reponer
Samaa T.V. and he went to the provincial assembly for the coverage of
ptoceedings. .tt 9.47 a.m, he received a call on his mobile from unkrowo
person, who issued threats to him. On 12.06.2011, Chief Executive Officer
of Awaz T.V. ioformed him that he has rcceived call from police ro appear
before the police on 13.06.2011. He appcared before Investigation Officer
Sultan Ali I(hawaja and his statement was recorded. His statcment under
Sccrion 164 Cr.P.C. was also recorcled before the \Iagrstrate. This camera
mao clearll,stated that accuscd prescnt in Coutt werc same. Video clip rvas

also same, which he ltad recorded. He was cross examined at length. He
has denied *re suggestiols thar video was not recorded by him anc{ the
same has been managed. He l.ras rlso clenied the sugicsrions that he was
deposing falsely at the itlstance ofcomplainant ancl police.

28. PW-19 DSP r\ltaf Flussdn Shail<h has stated that on 11.06.201 t he
was posted as SPO l(harvaja Ajmeir Nagri, West Zone, Ierachi. At 5.00
p.m. he was called io thc office ol DI() Sultan A[i I(hawaja and was

+
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informcd that hc has been made a patt o[ the investigatioo team for the
investigation of Crime Nos.225, 226 & z|j of 2011 at the directions of the

Honourable Supteme Court. He was asked by DIG to assist him in the
ir.rvestigation of Cime No.221 /2011. Thereafter, he abngwith Inspecrcr
\luhammad X,lubin left office of DIG ar 6.00 p.m. ancl went to p.S. Boat
Basin and took SIIr Nasrullah, SIp Haleem I(olachi, SIp Aslam Jatt and
Inspector Mubeen for investigation of tl.re place of vardhat. place of
vardhat was visited and from place of vardhat three bloodstained bricks
and a piece of the brick rvere collected in presence of the mashirs. Such

mashirnama was prepared. Bdcks were sealed. Thereafter, he has stated

that investigation officer DIG Sultan AIi l{harvaja recordcd statemenrs

under Section 161 CL.P.C. of the police ofhcials so also Arvaz .f.v. 
media

persons, The DVR and film, which were also shown oo T.\r., were sealed

in ptesencc of the mlshirs. Such mashirnama was prepared. Statements

under Section 161 Cr.lr.C. of the p.Ws. were recordeci. ,Ihereafter 
he

alongwith DIG and orhc! pojice ofhcials held press conference. C)n

12.06.201 1 Rangers Ofhcers produced accused Bal.ra_u_Rahman, Liaquar
AIi, Tariq and iVlanthar alongwirh their amts aod ammunition. They were
arrcsted, mashirnama of arrest and mashiroama of arms ancl affurunlflon
rvere prepared in the presence of maslirs. Statemenrs under Section 161

CI.P.C. were recorded. He teceived rcport of the ballisric expert and it rvas

produced in cvidence. He received spv informarion or 12.06.2011 at 2.30

p.tr, about preseocc of accused Afsar l(han. He proceeded alongwith
mashirs to thc pointed place and arrested accused Afsar I{han from tire
Slrireen Jinnah Colooy. On '|2.Q6.ZO1:' at 22,10 hours Inspector Nadeem
Anwar of llangers appeared at p.S. an<1 produced one mobile pl.rone used
by accused N{anthar,{Ji and nvo mobile phones belooging to accused Afsar
I(hiin, sarne werc recei\rcd, such mashirntrna rvas prcpared. On 13.06.2011

hc rvas callecl by DIG Sultan Ali I{hawaja ar p.S. Beoazir Bhutto park and
informed him that Hawalclar Abdul Rahman had btought a roy pistol. He
took the same and prepared such mashitnaml il presence of mashirs and
rccorded statement uodcr Section 161 Cr.P.C. IIc hacl also reccived

)

Ali I(harvaja recovered sL\ registers of Rangers regarding duty of the
accused. FIe secutcd the same aod prcpared such nrashirnama. FIe was
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cross-examined at leryth by learned counscl for appellants / accused. He

has denied the suggestion thrt his investigation was not fair and he was

deposing falsely against rhe accused at the instance of DIG Sultan Ali
I(harvaja and complainant Salik Shah. He has also denied the suggesdon

that recoveries have becn loisted upon the accused. He has also denied the

suggestion tl.rat appellants / accused have been falsely implicated in this

case.

29. PW-20 Sultan -\li I(hawaja, DIG Ierachi West, was appointed as

LO on thc otders of Hon'ble Suprcme Court on 10.06.2011 for
invcstigation of case. DIG Sultan I(hawaja penrsed F-IR No.221/2011

under section 302/34 PPC and came to know that I.O Facleer Dad had

already visited place of wardat and arrested accused Shahicl Ztfat arrd

Nlohammad Afzal and rhey were under remand upto 15.6.2011. Sectioo 7

A'fA on the basis of the letter of Assistant District public prosecutor was

added. Empties and weapon rvere already sent by rhe previous I.O to FSL
for reporl Sultan I(hawaja also perused FIRs Nos.225/201 I arrd 226/2011

and came to know SIP Nasrullah irad secured one pistol, three live bul.lets,

one empty and clorhes o[ deceased same were already seot ro the Cllemical

Examiuer by SIP Nasrullah. On 11.06.2011, with the approval of CCpO
I(arachi, he constituted feam comprising of IvIr. Niaz l,hmed l{hoso SSp,

Ml Altaf Hussain DSP, Inspectors N.fohammad N{ubeen and Mohammad

I(halid for his assistance. On 11.06.2011, he issue<l letter ro S.p

Investigatioo-I, South to handover custody of nvo nccused. On the sarne

date, l.re asked Diector General Raogers Sindh to handover cusrody of the

accused and their weapoos as well as mobile van. On the same date, DIG
I(hawaja asked Director Nervs of Awaz T.V to handover original DVR. On
1i.06.2011, hc visited place o[ rvardat, sccured blood stained three br.rc]<s

and one smail piece of brick and prepared such mashirnama in presence of
rnashirs. Hc also ptepared sketch of the place of wardat in presence of the
mashirs. On the same date, he aiong with sSp Niaz Hussain l(hoso, DSP

Altaf Hussain and Ltspector N{ohammad Nlobecn went to rhe offce of
Arvaz 'I'.\/ and met Syed Ioal,atullal.r Shah Chief Executive officer of Awaz

t

l

Y and asked l.rim to produce orignal D\rll of invident. \Ir. Iirawala
rvatched the 6lm of ir.rcider.rt and sealed the D\rli in prcsence o[ Inspector
Nlohar.nmad \[obeen atd (]hicf ]ixccurive ofEcer Syccl Inavarullah Shah by

I
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makiog such mashirnama. Then he went to the Conference Flall of DIG
South and called complaiflant Salik Shah, they went to 32 Wing Rangers

siruated near Navel Heights, whete DSR Ahmed I(aleem Arvan produced
accused Baha-ur-Rehman, Nlaothar, Tariq aod Liaquat along with their
ofhcial rveapons as weli as mobile van and attested copies of the duty rostel
reglsters and I(ot Regrsters. DIG Sultan sealed the rveapons, arrested

accused ic presence of the mlshin and prepared such mashirnama. He had
recorded u/s 161 CI.P.C sratements of the p.Ws. Oo 12,06.2011, he asked

Director Parks CDGK Karachi dated 12.06.2011 to produce p.W Abdul
Rasheed and Abdul Ghafoor for recotding their starements. Oo
12.06.2011he issued letter to DIG, CID Sindh Ierachi for data analysis of
Sims/Cell Phones, details of the incoming/outgoing calls including SMS,

NINIS of accused Manthar Ali Cell No.0313_2573571, mobile of Safia,raz

Shah No.0342-2.111322, mobile of accused Afsar I(hao No.0342_2000412

and 0324-2850085. In the evening of .1 
1/06 /2011, he invited general public

through message on'I.\, to appear at p.S Boat Basin lor recording their
starements regarding incident. In response to that message g male ancl 1

fcmale appeared xr P.S where rhet staremeots were recorded. On
12.06.2011 he addressed a letter to Geoeral Nlanager p-1V I(arachi to
report about the edidng in the DVR of incident. On 13.06.2011, hc
recorded 161 Cr.P.C sratemcnts of pW Abclul Salam, Abdul Rashee<i and
N4ohrmmad Shahid. He received incoming/outgoing call recorcl of mobiles
from DIG CID aiong with record of SNfS and \{NIS. On 13.06.2011 he

recorded statement of driver of Chheepa Ambulance. On 14.06.2011, he

tcceivcd letter from Depury Directot-I, parks CDGI( I(arachi in which it
rvas meotioned that accused .\fsar Iihao son of Gul l{uhi_u_Dio was r.rot

an employee of the Parks nor he was awarded contact to charge parking
fee at Sha}reed Benazir Bhutto prrk, Boat Basin. On 14.06.20i1 he

subn.itted an application to the Judicial N.fagistrate II, South, I(atachi tbr
recording the statements of p.Ws Abdul Salam Soomro and Abdui
Rasheed u/s 16,1 Cr.lr.C. On 15.06.2011 accused were produced in the
court ofJudicial N{agrstrate II, South l(arachi, whcre sratements of p.Ws

- Abdul Saleem Soomro and Abdul Rasheed were recorded u/s 164 Cr.p.C.
On 15.06.2011 he had recorded statement of p.W Zahid Eisa I(hokhar u/s
161 Cr.p.C. On 13.06.201.1 S.I Abdul Rahman of Rangers had produced

l.
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dummy pistol and such mashirnama was prepared in presence of mashirs.

Statements of P.\X/s vere recorded. The toy pistol was referred to the FSL

for report. DSP Altaf had tcceived expert opinion of DVR from General
N'laoager PTV. On 17.06.2011 DIG Sultan ancl his team went to 32

Rangers Wing near Navel Heights where DSR Ahmed I(aleem produced g

origrnal registers rvhich were sealed by him in presence of mashirs. On
17.06.2011 he received FSL Repon about toy pistol. lt was mentioned in
the report rhat pistol in questioo was flot a fire arm. He has also procluced

report of FSL with reference ro Crime No.225 arrrl 226 of 2011. On
17.06.2011 Director Laboraton seot a report in respect of black colour
jeans, black colour shirt and white colour banyan of cleceased Sarflaraz

Shah. 'fhe same were stained with human blood. Article No.1 to 4 were

aiso strioed wjth humao blood. I.O. Sultan AIi after investigation of FIll
No.225/2011 u/s 353/393/32t ppC and FIR No.226/2011 s/s 13(d) A.O
found cases false aod submittecl report before Judicial Magistrate_Il,

i(arachi South in "B" chss. After examination of call data record he came

to know that appellant/accused r\fsar l(han had made call from his cell to
thc cell phone of accused Nlanthar at 1717 hours on 0g.06.2011. I.O also

came to know thar accused Afsat Khan again made call from his cell to
appeilant lvfanthar ro reach at Food Court Shaheecl Benazir Bhutto park

clirccdv. l.O Sultan statcd thar he had seen the video clip ol iocident,

deceascd before death was saying that his pistol rvas a toy. Accused Afsar

I(han caused kick blow to the deceased and handed over him to llalgers
personnel/accused. In the meantime, all the accused persons cncirclcd

deceased and appellant/accused Shahid Zalar pointed our his wcapon upon
deceascd. r\11 d1e accused pushed the deceased back and uttered rvords

"N{AR DO NII\R DO NEECHAY GOI-I N{ARDO,,. In the meanume

two fircs were made upon deceased Sarlaraz Shah by accused Shahid Zafar,

rvho fell down and was begfog to sirift him to the l.rospital, in the flame of
Allah. i.O came ro know tl.rrough CDII that accused r\lanthar made call

lrom his cell at 1733 hours to accused At-sar I(ran to call Chheepa

Ambulancc. Accused ,\fsar l{.ran called Chhecpa Arlbulance on rhcir
telephone. I.O perused the reglster of Chheepl Ambulance. He also came

- 

to koorv during investigation rhatlleceased rvas rrkeo bv accused Sl.rahid
'la.hr a.n<1, Nlohamn.rad _\tzal in Chhecpa _\mbulance to Jinoal.r Llospital, .,

I
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if deceased had been shilted to the hospital in the Rangers mobile, his life
rvould l.rave beeo saved". I.O l.ras further stated that accused had no
intention/preparation to commit act o[ terrorism, Oo 27.06.201 I reporr
was prepared and he produced ettesred co). ofJoint Investigatioo Team
feport. After usual investigation challan was submitted on 1g.06.2011

before Iearned ldministrative Judgc, A fCs, High Court of Sincih Karachi.

30. Learned trial coun oo rhe conclusion of uial heard counsel

for partics aod after assessment of evidence coovicted and sentenced the

appellants, as stated above.

31. Mr. Shaukat Hayat, learned Advocate for the appellant Shahid

Zafat has argued that tl.re FII{ was registcred under section 302 ppC and

section 7 of -\'I.'\, 1997 was added mala frdc\, during iovestigatioo.

Ingredients of section 6 of ATA, 1997 were not attracted in this case.

Appellant Shahid Zafar rvas performing his official duty. Deceased Sarfraz

Shah rvas haoded ovcr to appellant Shahid Zafar ancl others by appellant
Afsar as hc rvas invoived in a cdmc. l-le furher submitted that frres were

made by appellant Shahtd 'Zafar on the Iower pert of the deceased. He had

no intention to kill him. Case was nor triable by Anti_tcrrorisrn Court
under the provisions of ATA 1997. .\ccorcling to Iearned clefcoce counsel

element of terroism was missing in this case. Lasdy, it was atgued that it
was not the case of death senteflce as the ingredients of section 302 pIrC

rcad with section 7 A'lA, 1997 ate nor attracted frorn the evidence on
record. Mr. Ntlehmood AIam Rizvi, learned Advocate for the appellaot
Nluhammad Afzal I{han, Baha-ur-Rehmaq, Liaquat AIi, N{uhammad

Tarique and N4anthar Ali, argued that Anti-ferrorism Act, 1997 provides
for prevention of terrorism, sectuian violence lod for specdy uial of
heinous offences and for the matters conoected therewith and incidental

thereto and submitted rhat Rangers persorinel werc performing official dury

ard I crimiral Sarfraz Shah rvas producecl beforc tlrcm and was clirected by

appellants ro surreoder and deceased did tot sulencler. Appellant Shahid

Zaiel fited upon him ar his Ieg and arguecl that tcn.raining appellants had

not sirared common intention r.vith appellant Shahid Zafar fot commissron

of offencc. He has argucd rhat prosecurion has ftiled to bring on tecord

evidcucc against appcllants that thcv shared common inrcntion with

/
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appellant Shalid Zafat Nh. Rizvi lastly argued that trial court did not
appreciate evidence according to law and prosecution case rvas doubtful

against the appellants. NI/s Ch. :\mir Narvaz \)laraich, Advocate for
appellant Afsar Khan aod Habib Ahmed, Advocate for appellants

Nluhammad Tariq and another, argucd rhat no acr of terrorism had been

committed by the appellaots and trial by Anti terrorism Court was coram

noo judice. It is argued that no evidence has been brought oo record by

prosecution to prove that rhe xppellaots had shared common ioteouofl

rvith main accused Shahid Zafar. Lastlv, it rves arguccl that no overacr has

been artuibuted to appellants except Shahid Zfiu. Ca.se against appellaots

rvas doubtful.

lo support oI contcnrions, Ietrnccl Advocates for the appeilants have

placed reliance upon the following cases:

1\

+

i). Io the crse of Niranjan Singh Karam Singh puniabi

Advocate vs. Jitendra Bhimrai Bijja and others (AIR 1990

S.C 1962), the Indian Suprcme Court has held as uodcr:,

"//. LVe hau careJi/! nnidered the rtaleryenlj oJ the titnetet an
whih the proteurhan re/iet i/t ytp?lr/ 0J ib ca teftiat that the arauetl
lnd ommitted an oferu ttder Settion )(l ) oJ tbe Art. Ve think that
lhe Deigtaad Cout was igltt i/t c0t/iltg t0 the conchtion lhat the
irtefiiu 0f lbe autrcd petortt udr /0 e/i Mte F,qtr atd Keshau Jor
gdi/titg.v/Pixnal it tlte tudenyor/rl. A ,rcre r/atene t t0 the efect tbat
lhe $ow rf strth tia/erce porld reate lerror or fear h the niitb of the
pe7Ple a k|te po d dare to WNle lhe/z tantut ca .rtil/ie a afetbe
under Secliott 3(/ ) af t/)e At. Thal na1 idud be tbe [a/t otrtif tle
uiorot/ a.r brrl tar -ar 0t bp rd,l la be ,e ittetthott of ih, p prioto,,
oJ tLe dne. lt t lear fron the idlemenl exhat/etl earlier that l
ithrlillt aJ l)e dLt /.ted perJlit adi lo eliminte tlx riudA and gain
.vtprematl it lhe tnderuo d !0 /hdt /hg r 1) br kruwn at tlte bal/ies oJ
the lonlig, ard uortld be dnaded at yrch. B* it unror be wid rhat rheir
lli.lenliou a.tr tu t?ile turar lt ftp pelph t,r a Jp.fian o1 rlte peoph anl
//-rcb)- nn"tl n tenaril ),r. It L.l"a, lnt /here ,rdr itat) ueh.r
lhe Pary aJ thp atcned at lhe oue hand attl Rajt aud Ketiau on tle

n). In thc case o[Mehram Ali and others vs. FeCeration

of Paldstan and orhcrs (PLD 1998 S.C 1445), Lhe

Flonourable Suprcme Oourt has hcld ls under-:



t

t' ii) In thc case of Muhammad Afzal and others vs. S.H.O and

others (1999 P.Cr.LJ 929), it is held rs under:-

"lToaeuer, il ma1 be ob*ned that the ofertet mettjoned in the Srhedule
to tl haye wxtt aith the objed af the At a lhe olfetus couered by

:e,hotr 6, - an,4 t ereo1. lt nal be tlated tlal *riott 6 defti:
/efflisl dtr, vcliat 7 pruuidu pudtbnetrt for ,ruch acb, and rcliot g
Prlhibitr'adr i e|tded or /ike!, to r/ir trp s*taiat hahed nertioted in
c/arcet (a) to (d) tltereol. IJ an affine irchtled ir the Sthedtt/e hat na
nexw wilh lhe abrne tetj\ .t. in )nt pre / lotiJiation ittcluliry trcb an
ofence lo tha/ extent wi// be rr/tra tiret."

i"). In rhe cxse of Basharat Ali vs. Special Judge, Ant!
Terrorism Court-II, Gujranwala (PLD 2004 Lahore 199),

tltc Lahorc I Iigh (iourt has hcltl as uncler:,

'A ruatter, ordirai/1, hat to be dea/t with it gmeral jttitdictior ant!
a est a car falb yttarel1 uithit :pedal jtdtdition, /ie Jonrns rea*d
under Secia/jd iiolt, cau/01 ere tulch /h|!e /ratterj.

Tbe cay tn hand n/ates lo abdulion af matied woman whicl olJeue,

P;r/,a /aN, wo d be panithable b1 vttion 16 oJ the Oft'ew d Zira
(ErJbaen*t oJ Htdood) Ordinarce, I929. A uague al/egatio) abottt
enploJne /rh0tu of fire-am pat kw/letl by the conplainant ia the
.ime rppai b tha/ ,uottJ harag nake tha/ a terrariJi ait. The tlcne
annit*d b1 the auu*d, obtitut/1, had ao nexrc with lbjerl ;f fie
Anti-Teroisn ALt, 1997 and ngniigtce oJ the use corld rui bare
beer taker b1 the Spuia/ Cot*."

+
' ......Ch. Bathir Altned a. Nauud lqba/ awl 7 othen (pLD 200/
5C 521) tlte u* itt ha , degite the bnrtaliy litpla1ul b1 the urpritt
aad t/te crn*qten/ banor, ,,-boik, far a itNe hy, /ike/1 ta h ciantt
b) /he rdt)agery perpetrated Q te nfenden, bat uoi Epeirctl to lt to be
a ute ol leroivl at the motiue Jor tlte a/hged ofencu wat wlhitg blt
Pe\7n,t/ e,./:/i0 .r l priuate uendetta antl the notjaa/iott at ttt pi* r,f
lhe aa:rred Pat\ aar tol /0 orerdD,e or intinidate the Gouernnint, eit.
or ta dutabi/iry tfu urieE at /arge 0r t0 ddraute a ) jetaria cd re et.
The. iutenior oJ tbe auued par! did ru/ depit or na i.fe arJ ,.lerig/'

0r ? .rpzre.' 
dr ktenpkted 1! tl)e pruuiio r of r&ot 6(1)(b) or (j of

the Atti-'lbnoisn At, 1997 and, thtu, the atttr rnt attib*ed io it
uat nal at,.Lrztpattied 11 /he xeteJ-iLrry ///e/t! red tu dr /o brakd it! 1lt/ia r
a.t ten'lirl/ tiabh exc/rtsite! 1.! a Spel-idl C0 t ta/lstitl.ied tndet.lhe
,4nti-Tenoritm Act, 7997. -t/:e ildtd lak,t before u b1 lhe kartul
Ati,tlad Adwcat Gewral appeaitgfor tbe Statu a/so 1:rauefu ort rhe
rdrle lirer d//d il i,'Jir there uery redrl r tl)dt the Sta/e h)s rhoset rnl nt
aPP1re //)i! petifior. ThiJ- ]r,tit letilio ir, tbenfon, a/lo ted t/te inpgtui

l2sI
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arder ?arred b) the learned Jrdge, Afti-Tetoitm Cattrt-ll, Gnjrarwah
or 1-10-200J it du/ared to be withottt kw/i attloriy ard of ro /egal
ejix ard the rame ir yt aride, the a?pliatio, fhtl- @ tlx-petitiiu
before the raid Corrt nnder nlon 2) af the Ani-Ter.orisn )ct, 1997
i al.ePted ad the petfizner's cav b detlared to be biabk b1, a Court of
ordirary jritdictioa. The /eanted lrdge, Attti-Terroriin Cort-Ii,
Cryranuala ir direied t0 tq//tmil lhe renrd oJ rbe petitiorer\ case lo
the hamed Ditict ard Sesiort Jrdge, Grimnwa/a JothwttlL JbrJrrther
?rzceeditgr h /he natter There thal/ be no order at to co.ttt."

126 I

The reqttireneftt o/ leroitn as de.,lned ir trb:ection p) an as

, v). In thc case of Amir Khan vs. The State (pLD 2005

Karachi 344) tlis Cour has ireld as undcr:

21, Tltw lhe eret)al ingredient oJ /errortn as derlned in ttb_
rction(l)(b) or O are at mde*

(a) A1 y thndl oJ actiot thall fa// wilin the neatitg o/
wb:ection(2)(a) to (n) and

(b) The ute 0r lhreat ir i eded or exfrecnd with its ratura/ axd
ireritab/e ronuqwret o.[ coerory and ittinidatilg or oueraviag lbe
Couerume 0r the fublic or a p,:ion oJ the plbli or conntig or
Ject ar ffeating a re re offear ad intecaig in the rocie\j, ar

(c) The ate or threat h nade Jor the ?tleore 0f aduatuing the religiols,
Jetaict, or elhtb tu re.

2;.

t
(i)

(i4

(i")

(iii)

Th.e ru oJ action 0r tl)reat af ac/iln tha///a// wihin the vEt of
:ubtecion (2)(a) to (n).

The actior falling ruder sbyctiott (2)(a) a (r) thall ino/oe the
ue offr*am1 e:a?/lriuer 0r ot) orher peaplr,.

Aboye at will become terroitm ngardkst oJ the Jt f/net or
vnt[a;not oJ lbp .ir.rtatta .eJ ar pli?oJe mciioted in
nb*inot (1)().

The aboue act shoald haue nexu pith the object oJ the Act,
1997."

vi). In the casc oi Mirza Shaukat Baig and others vs.

Shahid Jamil and otherc (pLD 2005 S.C 530), thc

I Ionoutable Suprelnc Court has held as undel:

_4^F
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'"the patel ca/lt for a d$triton whih wou/d make it tlear that ,,aty

attioa contitu/u *roim if it it inteded lo mue death or yrioirt
bodi/1 ltam to ciuiliarc with the pttpov o;f intinidatitg a papukiLk ar
tatnpe//ing a Gottranent or an inlematjonal orgroi1oioi to ,lo o,
abnaikJron dairy dll ad".

It ma1 howeaer, be ?0i ted 0//t thal at a/moi idenhu/ detcriptiott a/
terrzrism it lontaircd iu lhe Iften/alilral Coruettion lor tie
Stppredor o.f Jightiry Temriw as pe// as it the Su.triry Coutcil
Reto/trtian 1 566 Qa04) ad, as rttth, lhe tflittitiott pnpied $ the
pane/,it ytt liy'e/1 to breal rhe imptre ot, thit it*e tiat hat /a:ie,llur

'5. In ,:a:e the aJanmid prouiions atd tantent oJ I.I.R are put a it
jtxta Pariiry thet r'ectiat 6 oJ tbe uid ordindrle ir- ,tat atlrdtted. I/ ir ct
ettled /&, lhat Prea?rble is a/way ke1 to intetpret the lldtute. The t)ery
ol.le.t to pmuugare the Ati Tcnunin A. /, lqr- udr ta ,0 tn/ ic
atls oJ terroivn, yiarian tioletce ard olhcr heitolls ot'fenm as tlefiwtl
ir *.riort r.t oJ /l- A t d d tlolr {ttr! fia/ to bn,g rle afeu.t iitl,itt
lhe alrbil 0J the a.t, it ir er.reftial la exanite tlta/ thi said illena thot/d
Laae nextrt aitlt the objut oJ the act ard offenc* couered i) i* rebwat
j:roitiou nth at tuiot 6,"

vli). ln the case of Fazal Dad vs. Col (Rtd) Ghulam

Muhammad Malik and others (pLD 2007 S.C 571), the

Honoutable Supreme Court has held as under:-

r-iil). L.r the case o[ Bashir Ahn.red vs. Muhammad

Siddique and orhers (PLD 2009 S.C 11), rhe Llonoutable

Supreme Court has held as undcr:

'6. It order ta detetwift a! lo phether atr offence wotld fa/l within
the attbit of *tion 6 of the Anti-Tenotiru At, 1997, it uotr/tl be
uutrtial to hate a g/ane zuer tl)e a/legalilu liade h the F.I.R, ruord of
tbe uu and wmwditg drcamiatces. 1l t aho utesag ra examine
that the ingredietut oJ alleged ofenu haw a41 nexus with tie objut of the
Mse at contetup/.ied tnder ycliolt 6, Z and 8 thenof. Iylutier a
parliutlar att is an at-t o.f leffzrirh 0r,0/, lhe ruoliutiott, objet, rtuign
or ptrpoie bebiwl tbe ldid,tcl it /0 be yet. It it a/to to bi yett aito
whelher lbe uid at/ hat ff?ated a re re ol t'ear attt ircettd4t it the
ptbli, or ary yrnan oJ the pubt,-ar ianmlniD o, ir 'ary 

w,.
Exaniting lbe case h lnnd ot lhe ablye to/lth.rtatt. il it naifet att
the lace af it that l)e a/hgetl qfentv took f/au benrn of preuiori euritl
a d Priule u/tdelhx."

-'t-
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i*) In rhe case of Tariq Hat<im vs. The Stare and 2

others (2011 YLR 19), the Lahorc High Court has held as

under-

t,

"6, .Atfur at the argtrnttt oJ tlu /earned cowte/rhr the comphiwn/
thdt t/: acl of the attai/ant fa//: t il)i// the d?lrbit 0J tution-6 oJ lhe
Anti-Teroiw Att, 7 997 as the said a.uai/a lr taak lbe /iuu of thru
a itjured.thru 

.other 
innacefi penats ard there wat no preriotiermiy

0r ?enma/ ue etta af thou it 0L? ?eN0,1; with tie arailatt it
corturtul, urfin it /o abtene thatJrom lbe bare pentul of the F.I.R' it
it trlsla/ cbar tha/ the t;o//p/ai d,t/ stated in t/r F.LR that tbe
arailah after identilling Li brolher AiJ A$raJ nade jirtg on hit
tehuh wh_ich rholrr tl)e rledr ifiefiiat oJ the attai/anft to tlo aialt with
on/1 A:if Avhaf and ttat 0/he1"t b t thel ,vr/d not be vued tlrc jo their
acnnparyitg witb Aif Ashraf it the vne uebick."

t

x). In the case of Sripathi & Ors. Vs. State of Karnataka

(AIR 2010 S,C 249), tl.re Indian Supteme Court has held as

undef:-

"9. Setiot Jl ha beet emted ort the ?ittciph oJjoilt /iabilig itt
lhe tzm/lirriu oJ a trimiaal at. 'f he Suliot it only i nt/e of eL,iiertu
at,d Jor; ttol ne"tte.t trrt,\/att/te al[tLc.'

32. N{r. I(hadim Hussain I(huharo learned DpG appeared on

behalf of the State and atgucd rhar pro\.,lsions of section 6 of A,lA are ful\,
attractcd in this case. Incident rvas conrnirted in a brutal maoner in public

park and an innocent voung boy rvho was empry haoded was murdered.

Deceased was bagging for his [fe, but appellants, oot only caused him lue

arm iojuries, but did not take iojured in llangers mobile and rvaited for his

death which resulted due to heavy loss of blood. Nlr. I(huharo argued that

effect of the incident rvas such entire socieB terxrrized. He has referred to
the evidence of witnesses rvho fclt insccurc afier rvatching scenc of the

incident on thc television. On thc point of sharing common intention, it rs

argucd that overt acr has bccn attributed to all appellants with principal

accused Sl.rahicl Zo,fat. 'fhey facilitated him aod made it possible for
appellaot Shahid 'Zafar to fite upon rhe deceased wl.ro rvas emptv handed. It
is submitted rhat prosecution has ptoved rts case against rhe appellarits.

-=r,-



I I
(

l2e l

ld comnit a terori att ff ir lr.ler to, 0r
J:

Trial court has properly appreciated evidence brought on the recold. Io
support of his contentioos, relied upoo the following authorities:-

i). In thc casc of Ch. Bashir Ahmad vs. Naveed Iqbal
and 7 others (PLD 2001 S.C 521), the Honourable Supreme

Coutt has hcld as rrnclt r:-

"8. A penot wou

bb actiotu pi/l be
if the eflect oJ

&

\$

tlte

thiry b1

o/ rbe ate rura/. t/k a/kge,/ tpr;k/ing
lihn was aithh the borndary wa/h aJ'

not in ptb/i.and, t/rrefarc, /he ehnent
of Jear ad invuig it the peoph, o

-f*tt
l/)e

nade diwntib/e in th l.l.R and
tate at a whole. Sinilar! tlte p
indicatu that /ene

/he

", Ir lhe inr/ant up ar /he
oJ the qifu o th€ ?e\on af
te appel/anl't Loute. Il wat

aJ r/iki ,g lxttor ar Ndtifig re//re
r dt) retio,t o;f the peop/e

for thdt matter o, the ruord oJ tb,:
enra/ oJ tlte Stbedtle to lhe Att a/to

b1 doitg aa art or
'xV/osiue or i7t'/atztnabh

ttration aJ i.)e prariian! af
derling it prarided b1 u lor

tuirg bonb; dluamite or other e

t/b atceJ ett. ir a ite qtra rton Jor tbe a
vctiot 6 oJ a tbe Stltedtie to the Att (t
enPharir)

1i) In the case of Mst. Raheela Nasreen vs. The State

and another (2002 SCMR 908), the FlonourabJe Supremc

Court has held as under-
':;. 

. Or,ro aJmid, 
.t/+ Lrganent ir ortr ,.otttirlererl uiw i wt,o/l1

Ja//adon:. Ir zrd{ t0 dptc,l,tifle uheth?r a prrti.ktar a,t aJ tlLe a,,t,i.l
for whicb he * being hied for rinittal ofeiu Ja/b witbi, tbe anbit of
ary o/ the prouisiom af the At, i/ ir ,tat uceirdt) to ru.onl erirlence if
the Ltit/ter'rer /o utablith that the nid act had, ii frrr, ceot d troo, i,
le/ing 

rf nyyriq whercas tle quettior a;f appliabi/ig o;[ ary oJ the
pnriio,D 0t lhe Atl har ro ue deid,d by appti,ino,, o1 ,;ia n thi1.o,r,
al/3ed tn t/,e F.l.R ard orher a/tendittg . it-,t, miu u..et.

Z Fron a bare reading of vction 6(b) o;f the An, , ir ndaifen that
tl,tr 01 ie.?ltJn tht t, oXin,r o, a/legett lat i,t p.t. .rrrr,lirro, o,
tf. rcqhlrcm(rt ol tLe nid prcuti| o,[ uu ,orlJ be attequarc! wilied
y rl'c.sane wat /ik,! ro ,!n ke kror or ser,.;e a/yo, ond'iru,iig iri r/,e
peo?le

8. Tl.e karned ltdget oi tt,e Higl, Ca/d.a/np to the,att,h6jot ,at
a 

.Barman 
wbo Dar- d tnh/,,l/ pp^on aJ rn armt olfi,er if he kilh at

allcq?d bir naier h.onaiutn,e airh iit ,no*r'.,i,ri1r. il,, ,nnr ro,
/ife!. to ttri/1e *mr or fee/iry o-[ iuearil anirg-the arnl oficen
ult,rL natoting in otr uew arc L)ar.c./ alt r.,c,)tj/ inidortnau itautns
/ogt al n".<tt; aih tl,e tpleton /ott Lnd no not tt,ler /ran tn1 /.q,7rirfmi!."

)
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"Il p0//A lhlo dp?tar )a/ lrdi ary Lrilrer ar€ ,ot ta be deah aith llrtler
the Act. A p@ al bam to ie ui.tin i.r not t/)e .tale riteil,t t0
dlllrzzine 

.the llettiotr of terniw. Wbal h t0 be reerl ir the pycbo/ogica/
efed Prldrued b the rillent ac/ion or with the potenial ofpnititrg"ttth
a effect 0n the uciej at a whole or a yttioi then$ There n,] be a
death or iltry caused it the protesr. Tbu when a rriaiu/ act is
delQ,led.t0 ffeale a renx ofJear or irserri! itt the nintb af tbe guura/
ptb/ic di*rbiry elet tenpa aJ liJe and iarqti/lig o1 tti :oci4,, tlt,
t"arzte nEt be /rcated t0 be d telroirl act. There ma1 be jrcia ;t'eukilliryt, m on 0r tdrgeted, resofted to aith ,;ogi .i;,tAoui oJ
p/,tp^p. Bl r.eucnl,ele,i tt p i4,pa. / aJ /1., nn,e i.l 1.,, tc, *mi;o
1l,o/6a dr' aJ peap/p oJ luht,q a pd,t,i 0rJur ir, rhcir iittdt.

8. ln tbe pre*t .av. wt. pina1b,i,,ftd thar rfu oc.tttpn,e rooL
P.-a.e d/littl lLc pcak hahri aJ tt e da1 0,, rt, brtl Cuarl RoLJ tc.r ttL,
I )til,1.f Cu/4r, Lalure. wl ,re.-, fotr p?rr0 r trl./t, ott t/,c.'r wa.t ro
al/eud the CouT uere a//eged/1 nudercd b1 tle ne ol Ka/athaikoat. Tbe

'w aht la//.on a-[ tl,e ot*ren.o Jr la ,e timt. p/a.e ntl zjatter 0J

y ac! nearyd.1 yue of the /ear and iawctig irt uieg. Tbe cav watr,
thereJon, triabk fo the Anti-Tetoitn Cori utab/ithitl antler the nitl
Att in ea o;[ it penr/iar.lith arttl dnwuiarter at aha te /aa attd
ord r,t,tpty6,1 prr_rol,itg i, /he ta// h). lu r/.e a,e liLrtrlat,,tttprat a
,t,tt/ar uiew a; lahen bJ llii Latr/ tn n,,eD,t-al it,tt/ar,ir.Lrzt":lalet.

iii) In the czse of Muhammad Mushraq vs.

Muhammad Ashiq and others (pLD 2002 S.C 841), the

Flolrourable Supreme Court has held as under:_

iu). In rhe case of Nooruddin vs. Nazeer Ahmed and 4
others (2011 P.Cr.L.J 7370), rhis Courr has held as uncler:_

ln thc casc of Nazeer Ahmed and others vs. Nooruddin
and anorher (2012 SCMR 517), rhe Flooourable Suprcme,
(lor.rrt hls held es undct:-

"76. Exanitilg te tas it band an the dblue tluchltatr, we &tull
nltmLe t uiea am,rrh*d 1.,.1 ,e kart*i .-tttrme/ tor the req;ot eut
lhat the tase it triabh b1 the Jexionr Cort ott/y for ihe reotott ibat it i.t
o *n. o-[.1ni1^ chn/U. It h,h*/;y dedr,ibi, ,at $t alJel.y adr
ammi ed in,tltp malner. which wat etotrglt to rrean a *nrc oj inxadg
ar to donabiliy the ptrb/i; al large an,l Lmotruts n inoiw it
enrmerated ir eftiott 6 aJ lhe At."

r)

-.:
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"). IVe haue heard tbe hanrctl Aduocate S /.erehe Ca/./rt ald haw

?en/red the record. The kaned Htgb Catrt bai exaninetl the nateial
at /ergth.and hat ightl1 codtded that the art 0f the petiliateT teate.l
rlne of inva!! amaugtt /he uillager antt did .tertaiili<e the pabl dt
lirye ad, tltere[e, altrach the ?rud:iotJ- oJ :ertiott i o1 ite e,t*
Teroitn Att. The leanred Aduocate Srpreie Caut itt t"ttpport oJ hi
;ourerriou bat n/ied upott tbe lrdgnentl replnpd i i, ,oy of
Alahabar Ali y. Tlte )un rcponed in 20A- Sa\tR tt2 attd tbe ca:e
of Ba.thir Abned t Mtthannad Siddiq, repoxed in pLD 2009 SC
11, which are di$ngithable ot faclt. Neitier rhe noiue nor ittlentfor
cyyitsutt oJ the ofew * rehwrt lor tlte pupote ( nnfetring
jhtdicion an lhe Anli-Tetmritn Currt. b i thi oit wlii i, it;griA
to rreate *n* o;[inuurril ad or to dettabi/iry )e ptb/it.at large, ;bi,,l)
dt/rd-t /he pr0ti\0ni aJ re,tioa b,t[tl,e Af A.t, */,,..t, in tie,ate irt
btnl wat de:tgned to . rrJre t"trt uJ it1c, /,r/tt anLtgrt ll,p a.ril/dge$...

F

\\I

vr) In the case of Niaz Ahmed vs. The State (2013

P.Cr.L.l 429), dis Courr has he ld as undcr-

"9. AJter goittg thrugh the aboye dita laid down $t honorrabk
,0/./rt. it,it, atiferl lhat d/nl'ori/a/,te p,Lpar-ltion o-[ law it whih tle.ditg
appllhili5 0l tp,tiznj o atd - a.1 rhe A;t rt,i -a tio,t" ir o/ uoic
touideratior thaa. the "destgted to". In tbe itnat uu a Cidl jttdge it
conpliaw o/ order, ttrcd $ Suiort .ldge ritited tlre painid i/ace,
where detenae wa.t jbrud confned. The app/i,attt, Uelng a) o6ter'01 the
po/i:, cauot be uid to be ttrawan oJ ii ,vnreqteni o;[ ttl aeUiem*
atioas. He being a po/ie olfiwr, uat yp?lred t0 ac/ in a matuer ta
Lreate. 

11 
inpraton tf hlt beirygurd againtt ar oferw b* the aaterial

auatlabh refkttt that app/Lant/ accned, it ioliion oJ /aw kept the
d1*ut in i/legal a/ftldy at ?ilate place thotgh he iat ,lttle'r legal
ob/tgaliotr to an *ic/! ia accordattce aith lau ihith pina Jbtie priut
tbcl|," appli.dtl .at\d ro trdAt /o lau, hence n,)nit*tt" ,feitrc (
ma/featance b) detahiry tl)e pruate penon ir hit artotll. Nolon! tbi
brt ?er renrd tl)e dp?/ita t r blrqrerl/y tattsed seioti dererruta'in the
/ega l, d t g o r Mag wa *, b1 n a ki ng d i rc.t f n rg a n d ; n ar h 

" i r h e,L r : / 0,i1

E detet,.Jr0/4 th? rtr-ta,t aJ .\Iry;ha/, l,ert,.c rhe n.utl,r o/ rl,ue .it/
ollot,u it ;rfr..ipnt n /,uk tn pina y. i ap1 li,aut i at.i/g a-[
comnitting utiotrs offeru of Terorin. Nu,lktl io ar],t here"thi tie
?o/n? ofrN4r) are a/way stppond t0 ai ia aid oJ innocence at lhe
?laer.t, jtd iiil a .t h0ri0, t,ested it tbem it et)er meat/ to
*V/oit the onr ott rltl hate beet cntra.,lea $, ,:a":r,r/ Jtq oftreLnt.p a
r? \e o.[ rpnffil and pu.e aa,eng - t, diu.lt,, t/ ul ire .rr.u, ig , uorT o1
lerrar awl fear anatg lhe Mnimh /tence if t/Le pali,e oliceli u,i//Jr/l ;t
stdt like oJ aLhorc/ olfincet thcr there wori/tl oii, ,i *rirpt o7
"Soie!" hene atiottt o.[ tbt po/i.e l/ier(t) an not to be yut in tie
,1/atwr ar that af ofl)[(.r).

33. In this case, crucial point for determination is as to whether
Anti-Terrorism Court had juisdiction ro try the case. For dris purpose,
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whether an oflence would fall witlin the ambit of section 6 of Anti_

Terrorism Act, 1997 it rvould be essential to havc a glance over tl-re

allegations made in the FIR, pieces of evidence and surrounding

circumstances. It is also essential to examine whether alleged offence have

any [exus with the object of the case as contemplated under sections 6, 7

and 8 theleof. Whether act of accused was an act of terrorism or not, the

motivation, object, desigt and purpose behind the said act is to be

examined. It is also to be seen as to whether the said act has creared a sense

of fear and insecurity in the public or in a section of the pubJic or

commuoity or ir-r any sect. Thele can be no second opinion that where

action results in striking tefrol of creating feat, panic, sensation,

helplessness and sense ofinsecurity among the people in the pardcular nrea

it amounts to terror and such an actioo squarely falls within the ambit of
section 6 of the Anti-Ierrorism Act, 1997 atd shall be tr.iable by a Special

Court constituted for such purpose.

34. Scction 6 ofthe Anti-Terrorism Act, 1997 provides the definition of
"terrorism". In order to better appreciate the legal position, secrion 6 of rhe

said Act rvhich dcfines a "rerrorisr act" is reproduced as under
"6. Tellodsm. --- (1) In this Act, ,,terIoism,, means the use or threat of acLion
where:

(a) the action falis within the meaning of sub-section (2), and

(b) the use or threat is designed to coerce and intimidate or oveiawe the
Government or the public or a section of the public or community or sect or
cledte a sense o[ fear or inseL urrty in so( ieiy; or

(c) the use or threat is made for the purpose of advancing a religious,
sectarian or ethnic cause.

(2) A11 'action" shall fall within the meaning of sub-section (1), if it:

(a) involves the doing oI anything that causes cleath;

(b) involves grievous violence agahst a person or grievous borlily injury or
harm to a person;

(c) involves g evous damage to properry;

(d) involves_the doing of anything that is likely to cause death or endangers
a person's life;

(e) involves kidnapping for ransom, hostage-taking or hijacking;

s

v

(f) incites hatrecl and contempt on religious, sectarian of ethltic basis to stir
up violeltce or cause internal clisiurbancc;
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!?-:::"*. stoning, b ck-bating or any orher forms of mischief to spread
Panrc;

1ll -y*:: 
tiring on retiSious congregations, mosques. imambargahs,

cnurches, temples and all olher places or worship. oi random firirip to
spead panic, or involves .rny forcible taleouer of mosques o, orher place"s otworshrp;

9l:*i*,. : .:'::r r,sl to safery of $e pubtic or a sechon or rhe public. or is
:""fl"o t: Irighlen Lhe general public and thereby prevenr them from
cofiung out and carrying on their lawful trade and daily business. anddisrupts civic, lifej

0 involves the burning of vehicles or any other se ous form of arson;

(k) involves extortion of money ( bhatta,) or property;

(l) is designed to seriously interfere with
iorrlmuni( dtion5 sy5tem or publjc utility ser! ice:

sedously disrupt

(m) involved serious coercion or intimidation of a public servant in orclet to
force him to discharge or ro refrain from di*f,"rg_i ru, f"*f"i-d"i"r, ;.' 

'"

lll .*lr:'reriou_5 violence againsr a member oi the poLce lorce, armed
tor(es, ( tvtl armeJ forces, or a public servant.

lll T: l::.'*"i,:f use of any action falhg within sub_secrion (2). whichu1\olves the use ol fire_arms, erplosives or any olher \ eapon, is i"r.or,s_.
wnerher or nol sub-section l(c) is sadsfied.

(4) In this section ,action,' includes an act or a series of acts.

(5) In this Act, tetro sm, includes any act done for the benefit of aproscdbed otganization.

(6) A person who coinmits an oflence under this section or anv otherprovision oI this Act, shall be guilty of an act of terrorism.

(7) In this Act, a ,terotist, means;

(a) a person who has committed an offence of terrorism under this Act, andis or has been concerned in the commission, p*p-"ti"" 
"r-l*ig"i""'.?acts of tenorism;

(b) aperson who is or has been, whether before or after the coming into forceof this AcL concerned in the commission, preparation or instigati.I" 
"f"1" "itelrodsm, shatt also be included in the meani"g gt"en in ctu,;" GJ ;;;;.1"'

A bare reading of the above quoted provision of Iaw makes it crystal
clear that Courts have ooly to see whether the,,terrorist act,, rvas such
rvhich would have the tendency to create sense of fear and insecurity in the
minds of the people or any section of the society.

35. On the poiot of jurisdiction of Anti_T,errorism Court regarding

* killing of a taxi ddver at l(arachi by Rangers, Honourable Supreme Court
<'l.-=---- ,. ,\ \4de order dared 26.07.2013, passed in Constitutional petition No.37 of

2013 enunciated the law as under:_

\rta
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"2. 
- . 

It hat alto bun i Jln ed that i// rerpect of another inddeal dated
01.0b.20.l ). a ia* hat alio bua regi:tered ajereit the Rattgers uerc

_/oand to b, rntoh ert in rl,e h/ting oJ tleeated Chtr/an Haulci artd the
maller /)ai beet tha/laned agairt the a.tr.red perjot| ta afiyer tlje
;harge atder Se..non )02 PPC. Thi: Co,n it ,iuriou E e.[a.t lhat
ary oburualion, at th* $age, h /ike/1 to caar lrejudLe ro eiier of the
Prh, thereJzre, ue pat,e it [or $e /earned Anonel Gencrai for
Pakfutan, uho ita// look ito ite malter percotult Dith'lhe nrru/tu;ot
o1 a// the ,u.n.emed oltan a-[ pot/a a.t uelt as lhe rdug?o, At:Jlaale
Cew.ral and lbe Prl,piutor Cetura/ aJ the prtince a1 Ji,rtlh. Hower, r,
ue o,banp thdt the (oant belore )rbzm lhe mdfic$ ar? pendingJor tial
a{ the 

11ued,tha// pnued ta d€cide the casr )itbilt a- peiacl'itot nore
than 7'dayfon the date of wbniiol o;[ the cha/kn.

3. Hoaeuer, keqpiag in uieu /he uruilrig oJ tbe natter, uhicb hat
catted ynwtion in lhe Socie!, lhe autred siall be tried antler tbe

t

'-a

relcuanl prouitiots oJ the Anti-Terurisn Act, 1997, and the lrial nrct

Law
(PLD / 999

be t:znPkted, at enitaged trnder Setion .19
1) af the uid Act, read witl

rre pnt.tp/pj /a/J dow b) tbit Catn tDt tate A1 JL. I)aalat
P,

sc t01)."

36. In the present case, prXls Abdul Rasheed DDO, Nlohammad Shahid
Overseer and Mohammad Ramzan, Incharge of the park, have categorically

stated that on 8.6.2011, at about 4:15 or 4130 pm, they were ptesent in park
as they had received directions for making arfangemenrs at Shaheed
Benazir Bhutto Park, they saw ooe pe$on io civil clress wearing a cap had
caught hold one person (deceased) from his collar. In the meanwhile, a
mobile of Rangers personnel enteled ifl the park speediiy. Said person after
causing kicks blows to the boy handed over him to the Rangers personnel.
At that time, Ir\Y/ Abdul Rasheed heard words of ,,M;\RO N[ARO,, and
heard reports of two lues which hit said boy and he fell down and rvas

bleeding. Abdul Rasheed DDO while seeing the incident Iosr his senses and
felt fear and venr away from the place of incident. He furt]rer stated that
PWs- Mohammad Ramzan and N{ohammad Shahid and team ofAwaz f.V
were present at thar dme. p\Vs_ Mohammad Shahicl Ovcrseer and
Nlohammad Ramzan have also implicated the appellants in the same
manoer and identified the appellants in the court. Awaz T.V. camerarrufl,
namely, Abdul Salam rvho captured the scene in which it has been shown
that all rhe accused encircled the deceascd and appellant Shahid Zalar
opened rwo fires upon him, has also fuliy implicated the appellants and
audio-video cassette was played in the court in presence of counsel for the
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parties i! order to appreciate the evidence propedv, Lady pW_Msl Gulnaz
and Mohammad Shaheen Javed watched the TV and felt insecure to 1,1s1t

public parks and sense ofinsecurity prevailed upon the society. Ve have no
hesitation ro come ro the conclusion that confldence inspiring evidence has

been brought on record to satisfy the court that the appellants who belong
to Rangers, being armed with official arms and ammunitions encircled aod
overpowered Sarfraz Shah (deceased) and directed him to raise face

upwards and one of the appellants, namely, Shahid Zafat fircd. upon him
aod another fire after sometime was repeated by him, as a result of such
fires, deceased received fir arm injuries and fell down and started crying and
was b4gging for his life and requesting the accused to shift him to the
hospital but they did not hear him. Consequently, due ro heary Ioss of
blood injured died in the hospital. From the evideoce it has been brought
on record that it can be easily visualized that the maqner in which murder
of a young boy was committed in a public park it was nothiog but act of
terrorism. Obviously, act of accused who exploited Rangers uniform rvas to
design the sense of insecuriry and did destabilize the public ar large, who
watched the scene of offence on T\r and were present in the public prrk.
Looking to rhe peculiar circumstances, neither motiye nor inteot for
commission of offence was relevaot factor for the purpose of conferrmg
jurisdiction to Anti-Telrorism Court. In rhis case, it is manifests ancl

proved by cogent evidence that the act was desigaed to create sense of
insecurity in the sociery. It was classical highhaodedness of law eoforcmg
agency, who are bound to provide protection to the citizens of pakistan,

not to eliminate them co[ffary to laur. It is sertled proposition of law that
Rangers had no authority at all to open fire upon the accused person uoless
accused person lred upon tl.rem. Reference in this respect can be made to
the case of Mehram Ali vercus Federation of paktstan and other€
(PLD 1998 SC 1445) wherein Honourable Supreme Court has held that

-+{

Rangers had no authority to open fire. The act of the accused/Rangers rvas
designed to create seose of insecurity among rhe public at large by
committing brutal murder o[ Sarfraz Shah, a helpless young boy, rvho rvas

* beggrng for his life. It was not necessary thar action of accusecl must have<lU-+- taken place wi*Lin the vierv of general public so as to bdng it rvithin the
encompass of Act,1997 but in the plesenr case action created fear,
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insecurity and psychological impact upon the minds of people. Anti_
terrorism Act, 1997 provides for the prevention of terrorism sectarian

violence aod for speedy trial of heinous offences and lor matten connected

herervith and incidental. In the present case elemeot of terrorism is there
and heinous offence has beeo comrnitted by appellaots during day time in a

public park. While relying upon the ptinciples laid down in the above cited
authorilies, we have no hesitation to hold that the sensitivity of the
incident, which had caused sensation in the Society by the act of the
Rangers by firing at helpless boy, the case of the accused is triable under
the relevant provisions of Anti-Terorism Act, 1997. The cumulative iall
out of the occulrence as to time, place and manner of act created sense of
fear and insecuriw in the society, which attracted the provisions of Section
6 of the Anti-Terrorism Act, 1997. Learned trial Court had rightly assumed

the jurisdictioo and decided case ufldff the ptovisions of Anti_Terrorism
Act, 1997.

Q

37. We have scanned the cntire evidence. At the outset, it may be stated
that the Iearned counsel for the appellants did not dispute the incident and
the maoner in which it took place as well as participation of appellants in
the crime bur what they emphasis was rhat appellants had acted while
discharging their dutv assigned to them to maintaio law and order situation
in I(arachi. It is further contended that deceased was snatching purse ftom
N{s. Hira and he rvas caught hoid by appellant Afsar aod produced before
Rangen personnel/accused. It is also contended that appellant Shahid
Zafar fircd two shots at the leg of the deceased and his inteotion was nor ro
kill but to cause injury to thc deceased. It is also contended that remarning
appellants had not actively participated in the iacideol Though
participation ofappelants in the incident has been admitted despite that we
believe rhat it is the primary duty of prosecution to prove its case agamst
the appellants beyond anv shadorv of doubt. From the evidence of PWs_

Abdul Rasheed DDO, Mohammad Shahid Overseet and Nlohammad
Ramzan, Incharge of the par:k, it is proved that deceased was caught hold
by appellant Afsar I(han and he was made over ro llangers

---=r--]-+ersonnel/accused. Appellants were armed with official weapons, thev
encircled deceased. issued Lalkara that,,N{ARO NLdRO,, and appellant
Shahid Zafar fired upon deceased at his leg and another fire was also made
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to deceased after ooe or two seconds. It has come in evidence that due to
heaq, blood loss of deceased and deljberate delay in shifting the injured to
the hospital in Rangers van, he succumbed to the injuries. It has also come
in eyidence tlat after causing fire arm injuries to deceased, no accused

person went oear to the deceased to save his life and he was Ieft to die

P$(/s- Mst. Gulnaz, Nfohammad Shaheen Javed and other prosecurion
witnesses after rvatching incident on.fV felt insecure antl society was

generally terrorized by such inhuman act. It was obviously act of terrorism
and heinous offence, Evidence of aboye named prosecution witnesses rs

fully corroborated by medical evidence and positive report of chemical

examiner. A1l appellants in their statemeots recorded under section 342

CI.P.C have admitted the incident and taised plea that deccased was

involved in crime. DW-Alam Zaib has stated that on g.6.2011, he was

sitting with his gidfriend Miss Hira. Deceased snatched mobile, purse, cash

etc. Ve are unable to believe defence evidence of DV_Alam Zatb for tbe
reasons that Nliss Hira ftom whom mobile and purse were snatched has

also not been examined by appellants in defeoce. DW_AIam Zaib has not
given probable cause of his presence at the time of incident and suppressed

relevant facts. Defence theory appears to be unnatural for the reasons that
in the pubiic park, snatching of purse was normally not possible. DW_ Col.
Salman Ahmed has admitted prosecution case but deposed that deceased

was involved in the commission of robbery. He was haoded over by one
civilian to the Rangers/accused. FIe was directed to surrender but deceased

tried to snatch weapon from the accused and he was fired by accused and it
was accidental fire. This clearly shows thar incident has been admitted.
Defence theory is nothing but admission of accused that offence has been
committed by them. Evidence of pWs is quite natural, stralght forward,
confidence inspiring and corroborated by medical evidetce, therefote,
same has been rightly relied upon by the trial court for conviction agarnsr
appellants. It has been contended that appelant Shahid Zafirr has firecr
upon deceased and other appellants had not shared corrmon intentioo..l.o
charge a person for shating common intention with anothel, ordioarrJy

* t

common tntention presupposes prior concert but it mav well dcvelo p at the
spur of the moment, cirher immccliately before the commission of the
offence or during its commission dcpencling upon circumstances of eacir
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case. It is difficult to procure direct evidence to prove the intention of an
individual and, therefote, it has to be inferretl from the act or conduct of
the prrticipanrs or other relevxnt circumstlnces oI rhe case. In ths ca:e,
deceased was empty handed and accusecl were armed with official weapons.
There was no probability that deceased would cause any harm to the
accused pesons or snatch weapons from accused persons. ,fhere 

rvas alscr

no possibility that deceased would escape away. Despite that in a very
brutal manner, he rvas fired by appellant Shahid Zafat rrot otcebut another
hre was also made upon him. Hood was oozing but accused persons did
not bother ro go near to the deceased. Rangers,mobile was also rvith the
appellants despite begging fot his life aod request for shifting to the
hospital, deceased was not immediately shifted to the hospital. Conduct of
participants shows that the intention of the appellaots was to kill the
deceased. Only plea has been raised tl.rat deceased tried to snatch $,eapon
from accused and he was fired and deceased died due to acciclental fire. We
are unable to accept such defence plea for the reasons that deceased was
empry handed when appellant Afsar I(han brought him before remarning
appeilants, whereas appellants were armed with sophisticated automatic
weapons. Plea of snatching official weapon was unbejievable. Appellants
have failed to substantiate defence plea. Report ofJoint Investigation Team
has been produced in evidence by pW No.20 Sultan Ali Khuwaja D.LG. In
the findings of Joint Investigation Team, cases regrstered against the
dcceased bearing crime No. 225 of 2011, under sections 353,393,32.1 ppC
and crime No. 226 of 2011, uncler secrion 13(d) Ams Ordinance, 1965 of
Police Station Boat Basin were found to be false. It has been clearly shted
thnt there was no encountef, deceased Sarfraz Shah was carrying dummy
pistol. Plea of rhe appellants that rhey rvere performing the dury ro
maintain Iaw and order but under tl.re law as held in case of Mehram
(supra), member of Armed Forces can fire upon an accused persoo if he
has been himself fired upon by him. In the present case deceased had not
fired upon the accused persons and thefe was not evefl a remote chance ol
firing upon rhe appellant as he was empw handed and was encircred by tl.rc
appellants, who all were armed with sophisticated weapons, Norv question
arises whether co-accused shared common intention with principal accused
Shahid Zafar. The conduct of the appcltants except Liaquar Ali rhat drey

_<-

l

\



a

T

1391

encircled tlle deceased being armed with ofhcial arms raised Lalkara and
frcilitated the commission of crime, intentionally took no efforts to rescue
Iife of deceased are rhe relevaot fxctors to prove that above appellants had
shared common intentioo with main accused Shahid Zafat. Case of
appellant Afsar Khan is not distinguishable for the reasofl that he had not
only made over deceased to rhe Range$/accused, but caused him fists and
kicks blows and immediateiy called appellant Manthar Ali to reach at
Shaheed Benazir park. The common intention of accused Afsar Khan is
futther eyident from the fact that he himself was just a ,,Car 

Washer,,
whereas the person whom the deceased allegedly atrempred to rob i.e.

D.\V-I was a police official and rvas armed with pistol aod according to his
deposition he hit the butt blow of the pistol to accused who fell down and
this D.W. over powered him. At the time of firiog upoo rhe deceased by
principal accused, he had facilitated him in the commission of offence
alongwith other appellaflts. 'lhe overt act of appellant Afsar I(han cleady
shorvs drat he had common intentioo ro commit the crime. It is immatenal
as to what pait was played by appellant Afsar l(han but it is proved that he
had stood together alonglvith co-accused, therefore, uoder the priociple of
larv that where two or mote persons acted with common intenton, each is
Iiable for dre act committed as if it had been committed by him alone.
Nloreover, appellant Afsar lCran in his statement recorcled U/s 342 CrJr.C.
has admitted his preseoce at the time of occurrence. Appellant Afsar I(Ian
alongwith othet appellants encircle<l deceased at the time of incident, as it is
evident in DVD cassette, produced by SIO Nluhammad Mubin, ancl
uttered words --- (,,N,Iaro,, ,,Nlarc,,,). Evidence in l)VD cassette/
video recotding produced in trial Court is admissible in evidence under
Article 164 of Qanun-e-shahadat (10 of 19g,1). Reference can be made to
the case of Shaikh Aijazur Rehman v. The State (pLD 2006 Ierachi 629).
Supreme Court of India in case of Ramchandran and others y. State of
Ketala (2072 SCMR 1156) on common object has observed as under:

.tq+

"For "common oblecC', it is not necessarv that thele should
be a prior conceft in the sense of a meeting of the members
of the unlawful assembly, the common 

"Ui..t -uy for- olr:pur,oI rhr momcnl. ir rs erruugh il ir ts ado1rc.l'by ,,ll u]rc
member5 rnJ rs slr tred Lr ,tli ut rh,.m. L ,,.der rhrr ilre cr""rnlr fllll r,nder rhe fir", pan th( uttence commirred mrisr bt
conaccted immediately with the common object of the

j
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The Hon'ble Supreme Court of pakistan in case of Sr1. Muhammad
Abid v. The State (2011 SCMR 1148) has obsewed that once it is found

that accused had common intention to comrnit the crime it is immaterial as

to what part rvas played by whom as law as to vicarious liability was that

who had stood togerher, must have fallen together. Relevanr parts are

reproduced as under:

unlawful assembly of which the accused were membets.(Vide:
Bhanwar Singh and others v. State of \,t.p., (2003) 16 SCC
6s7) (ArR 2009 SC 768)".

i

*9. We hau giuer anxiol.t con.rideratiot /a the sbmirsions
nade b1 /earued cowsel for the appel/ant atd fwt that
ap?aftntb, fu the circam arcer o/ the cax, it wat uery dffiait

Jor lhe tonplainatu ard the ge-uitttuu.t to giue atnint oJ each

fre qeafrwg that whou fre hit cttt ahich part oJ the bodiet of
the duvaud, phea iadiscrimirate fing wat nade b1 tie
appellanl and the abno irg acamd.

10. Ottn it it fomd that tbe accared perslu hatl common
inte iM ta connit the crine, it it innateia/ ar to ahat ?att
wat playd b1 whaw as lau at to yicaious kabiliu ir that thore
uho stand together, uutt fa// tlgetber. The Erction what
injries were inJln*d b1 a partiular acaued in mu n abich
vction )4, P.P.C appliet is innaleia/, the pincipk nderling
the uctian being tbat ahere hro or non personi ac*d with a
tommon intentiott cath t lableJor tbc att ronnitted as ifit had
been dore b1 htm a/ore.

/1. The bial Coart at we// as the Higb Caart bau belieued
the oczlar euideue in the cau which foattd cotftlenu inqpiittg
and there it m reaprcJor ts to dingree with the Epntialiox oJ
the euideue bJ the no orrts belou...

38. Honourable Supreme Court in more than one cases has held that
approach of the Court while decicling the criminal matters should be

dynamic and it should take into consideration the surrounding situaoon
and should Irot lightly set aside a conviction on technical ground if the
Court's conscience is satisfied that facrually the convicr was guilq, of the

offence. In this regard, reference may be made to the case ctf STATE
through Advocate-Genetal, Sindh, Karachi v, Fatman Hussajn and
orlzers (P L D 1995 SC 1).

39. For the above stated reasons and while re\,ing upon the above citecl
judgment of the Hon'ble Supteme Coutt of pakistan, rve have no hesitaron
to hold that the prosecution has proved its case against appellants except
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appellant Liaquat AIi beyond any shadow ofdoubt. Learned tial court has

righdy awarded death seotence to appellant Shahid Zafar rvho caused fire
arm injuries to deceased and remaining appellants except Liaquar Ali wele
also righdy sentenced to impdsonment for [fe oo the basis of evidencc
connecting them in the commission of offence as discussed above.
Therefore, reference made by trial court fot confirmation of death senrence

awarded to appellant Shahid Zafar is answered in affirmative and the
conviction and senteoce recorded by the trial court by judgrnent dated
12.8.2011 against remaioing appellants except Liaquat Ali are maintained.

We believe that it is the dury of the court ro sift the grain from the chaff.
As appellant Liaquat Ali was standing on Rangers van duly armed with
official weapon, neither he taised Lalkara nor committed any overacl
"fl.rere is absolutely no evideqce to show that he shared common intentron
with main accused Shahid Zafar. prosecution has failed to prove its case

agdnst appellaots Liaquat Ali beyond any shadow of doubt. Therefore, we
extend benefit of doubt to appellant Liaquat Ali and acquit him of the
charge. He shall be released fonhwith, ifnot required in other case. It may
be meodooed here that the crimioal revision filed by complainant for
eohaocement of sentence agdnst appellants, namely, If{uhammad Afzal,
Bahaur Rehmao, Liaquat Ali, Nlohammad Tariq, Manthar Ali and Afsar
Iihan has already been disrnissed as withdrawn. Consequentlv, appeals filed
b) appeilants Shahid Zafar, Nluhammad Afzal, Bahaur ltehman,
N{ohammad Tariq, Manthar Ali and Afsar Khan are hereby dismissed.

40. Before parting with this ludgment, it is mentioned l.rere that dunng
pendency of appeals, comprornise applications were filed by
complainant/Legal heirs of deceased Sarfraz Shah. After hearing the
learned counsel for the appellants, rve have come to the conclusion thar
offence under section 302 ppC is compoundable by legal heirs of the
victim whereas offence under section 7 of ATA, 1997 have not been
shown in the first aod second column of table of section 345 C r.p.C, such
offence is not compoundable under the provisions of section 345 Cr.p.C.

.r- -_ Reference can be made ro the case of Muhammad Rawab v. The State
(2004 SCMR I1Z0), which reads as undel

'I'Ieard Dr BabarAwan, learned Adurcate Slpreme Cottrt an
behalf of appe//ant ard haned Adruca*_Grrrril, k, tlu Stot .

/
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Tbe piwtal qtution which needt determirulion uoald be at ta
whelher paiies caa be allaued to conpoad the ofences which are
n1t rqnP1llrdable b1 irt'ae of the prouitiow a! fi tenplated is
settion )15, CrP.C. tpecial! itr uiew of the Eecifc bar as
mentioned itt nbtettiot O oJ xctior )45, Cr.P.C. There is no
derying the Jact that xclon J65 A, P.P.C read with v,:fion 7 (e)

aJ the Arti-Terroisn At, 1997 is rut conpaudabk. The
pradtions at toltained it tection )15Q) Cr.P.C. haye but
couled in wch a plaia ad :inpk /atguage that there it hard/1
ar1 vope Jor ary i er?retaliot exqpt thal a rcn conpoandable
ofence cannot be made c0n?0 dabk bJ thir Clu-t for the inp/e
reatzn that w amendmefi, dehtion, iuert)oa or aclditiott co d
be nade b1 thi: Cont and it tould on! be done b1 the
ltgis/ahtre dr thir aqei of the natter falh fu ils exduriu
donain o.f jai itiott. The prouitiou as contaired in s*tion
315,CrP.C. canrot be $retched too far b1 iulndiag the non
coapomdabk ofenu therein tndr lhe garb of humanilariaa
groanth or a ) ather l,x/rafiea ! cotttideration, 1-he ofewt
c1nnitted bf the a?pe/latt are rut aJ grare and a/amting rctun
b the :ame are agaitsl the racie\ ar a who/e atd tamot be

Pem/itted to c0n?0,/d b1 ary iadiidrul on atJ rczre ahallleuer.
It na1 be w*d thdt tabrlai\fi of the oferu: at made under
section )15, CIP,C. beiry manbigtoas remoue all dolblt,

ficertai A atd nui be Ltket aJ [Lr?2?/ete and comprebemiue

gaide for conpomding lhe ofetat. The jrdiial nnunrc uent
to be lhdt

ta

J /atv

the blit
.t

the

be

t
pclion".

41. As regards the legal position, to compound an offence punishable

under section 7(a) of the Anti-'ferrorism Act, 1997 is coocerned, such

offence is non-compoundable and it is against pubLc poliqr to compound a

non-compoundable offence. The provisions as contained in section 345

CI.P.C. cannot be stretched too far by including thercin a non-

compoundable offence under the garb of humanitarian grounds or on the

ground that appellants belong to ltangers. -lihe manncr, in which brutal

murder of the deceased was committed, caused sensation in Societv. Such

offence was against Society and it cannot be permitted to be compoundr:d

by an individual/legal heirs of the deceased on any score rvhatsoevcr.
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T}rerefore, compromisc applications (N{,\-2613/2013 and NLA-2614/2013)

lre rvithout legal force and same by disnissed

tr
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